








 

 
Board of Trustees 

June 23, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 1 of 6 

THE HARRIS CENTER for 

Mental Health and IDD 

 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

 

This is an official record of the Board of Trustees, The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD, an Agency of 

the State, established by the Harris County Commissioners Court under provisions of Chapter 534 of the Health 

and Safety Code of the State of Texas. 

 

 

PLACE OF MEETING:  Conference Room 104  

  9401 Southwest Freeway     

    Houston, Texas 77074 

 

TYPE OF MEETING:  Regular 

  

 DATE:    June 23, 2021 

 

TRUSTEES 

IN ATTENDANCE:    Mr. Shaukat Zakaria, Chairperson 

Dr. George Santos, Vice Chairperson-virtual 

    Dr. Lois Moore, Vice Chairperson 

    Mr. Gerald Womack 

 Judge Bonnie Hellums     

    Dr. Robin Gearing  

Mr. Taseer Badar-virtual 

Sheriff Ed Gonzalez, Ex Officio-virtual 

 

 

 

TRUSTEES ABSENT:      Mr. Jim Lykes 

    

                                                     

 

1. Declaration of Quorum  

Mr. Shaukat Zakaria, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:58 a.m. noting that a quorum of 

the Board was in attendance. 

 

2. Public Comments 

Mr. Shaukat Zakaria announced the floor is open for public comments. There were no public 

comments made.  

 

3.      Approval of Minutes  

          

MOTION BY: MOORE   SECOND: SANTOS 

      

  

Page 4 of 533



 

 
Board of Trustees 

June 23, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 2 of 6 

With unanimous affirmative votes 

 

  BE IT RESOLVED the Minutes of the Regular Board of Trustees meeting held on Wednesday, 

 May 26, 2021 as presented under Exhibit F-1, are approved. 

  

4.    Chief Executive Officer’s Report was provided by CEO Wayne Young  

  Mr. Young provided a Chief Executive Officer report to the Board.  

       
5.     Committee Reports and Action were presented by the respective chairs:  

 A.  Resource Committee Report and/or Action- G. Womack, Chair 

   1.  FY’21 Year-to-Date Budget Report- June (Sean Kim)        

 B. Quality Committee Report and/or Action- G. Santos, Chair 

 C. Program Committee Report and/or Action- B. Hellums, Chair 

 D. Governance Committee Report and/or Action-J. Lykes, Chair 

  

6.  Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Dr. Santos moved to approve Consent Agenda items A through AL with the exception 

of agenda items AA and AD 

SECOND:  L. Moore seconded the motion. 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, Consent Agenda items A through AL were 

approved agenda items AA and AD were not approved. 

 

  A. Approve FY’21 Year-to-Date Budget Report-June 

        

  B. June 2021 New Contracts Over 50K 

 

 C. June 2021 Contract Amendments Over 50K 

 

D. June 2021 Contract Ratifications Over 50K 

 

E. June 2021 Contract Renewals Over 50K 

 

F. June 2021 Interlocal Agreements 

 

G. Compliance Plan 

 

H. Infection Control Plan  

 

I. Agency Abbreviations 

 

J. Breach Notification 

 

K. Check Signing 

Page 5 of 533



 

 
Board of Trustees 

June 23, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

L. Compliance Department 

 

M. Faxing Patient Identifying Information 

 

N. Improvement of Consumer Care Committee 

 

O. Infection Control 

     

 P. Return to Inpatient Care of Furlough Patient 

 

 Q. Sanctions for Breach of Security and/or Privacy Violations of Health Information 

 

 R. Security of Patient/Individual Identifying Information 

 

 S. Center Related Meeting Expenses 

 

 T. Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/Individual Health Information 

 

 U. Consents and Authorizations 

 

 V. Content of Patient Records 

 

 W. Correcting Documentation and Coding Errors 

 

 X. Court Ordered Outpatient Mental Health Services 

 

 Y. Declaration of Mental Health Treatment 

 

 Z. Development and Maintenance of Center Policies 

 

 AA. Least Restrictive Interventions and Management of Aggressive Behavior 

 

 AB. Medication Administration 

 

 AC. Patient Record Administration 

 

 AD. Patient/Individual Access to Medical Records 

 

 AE. Property Inventory 

 

 AF. Referral, Transition and Discharge 

 

Page 6 of 533



 

 
Board of Trustees 

June 23, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 4 of 6 

 AG. Request for New Revised Deleted Patient Record Forms 

 

 AH. Requisitioning Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance 

 

 AI. Retention of Patient-Individual Record 

 

 AJ. Safety Drills 

 

 AK. Service Assistance Animals 

 

 AL. Signature for Authorization 

 

7.   Review and Comment  

   

  A. Legislative Update 

       Amanda Jones presented on Legislative Session 

 

  B. Current Strategic Plan Update 

       Wayne Young presented on Current Strategic Plan Update  

   

8.    Executive Session-   

At 10:56 a.m. Chairperson Mr. Shaukat Zakaria announced the Board would enter into 

Executive Session for the following reasons: 

• In accordance with §551.072 of the Texas Government Code, Discussion about the 

purchase of real property to replace and/or expand Southeast Clinic located at 5901 

Long Drive, Houston, TX-Silvia Tiller, Director of Contracts 

 

• In accordance with §551.072 of the Texas Government Code, Discussion about the 

purchase of real property to replace and/or expand Northeast Clinic located at 7200 

North East, Houston, TX- Silvia Tiller, Director of Contracts 

 

9.    Reconvene into Open Session and Take Action 

At 11:36 am, the Board of Trustees reconvened into open session.  

 

10.    Consider and Take Action as a Result of the Executive Session 

MOTION #1-Mr. Gerald Womack move the Harris Center of Board of Trustees authorize the 

purchase of real property located at 7583 Little York Road for the Purchase Price indicated in the 

Real Estate Sales Agreement which amount has been confirmed as a reasonable “Fair Market Price” 

through two separate professional appraisals, that assessed the value of the land above the offer price 

agreed to in the fully executed Sales Agreement. The purchase of the property is in the best interest 

of the Community for the following reasons: 

 

Page 7 of 533



 

 
Board of Trustees 

June 23, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 5 of 6 

1. The Harris Center’s Northeast Clinic is located in a high risk flood zone and has 

experienced catastrophic property losses in 1995 and again 2017. The purchase of the 

property will allow the Harris Center to mitigate the Harris Center’s risk of catastrophic 

property claims caused by flooding in the future by relocating the services provided at the 

Northeast Clinic location out of a high-risk flood zone. 

2. The Harris Center has provided mental health services in Northeast Harris County for 

almost 30 years and intends to continue to do so for many years to come. 

3. The Harris Center intends to build a new clinic on the proposed site to meet the growing 

behavioral health needs of residents residing in Northeast Harris County. The search and 

selection process for a property to meet the Harris Center’s unique needs took three years. 

The location of the property relative to the client population we serve, and exceptional 

characteristics of the property will permit the Harris Center to expand its services in the area 

which provides additional value to the Harris Center. 

4. The submarket for developable sites of this size (acreage) to accommodate this project is 

limited. 

 

SECOND:  B. Hellums seconded the motion. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, the Board of Trustees approved the 

purchase of real property real property located at 7583 Little York Road for the Purchase Price 

indicated in the Real Estate Sales Agreement to replace the Northeast Clinic located at 7200 North 

Loop East, Houston, TX. 

 

MOTION #2:   Mrs. Hellums, move that the Harris Center Board of Trustees authorize the Chief 

Executive Officer to execute & deliver in the name of and on behalf of the Harris Center, all contracts 

and related documents as shall be necessary for the Harris Center to effect the acquisition of the real 

property located at 7583 Little York Road, Houston, Texas. 

 

SECOND:  R. Gearing seconded the motion. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, with unanimous affirmative vote, the Board of Trustees authorized the Chief 

Executive Officer to execute & deliver in the name of and on behalf of the Harris Center for 

property location at 7583 Little York Road, Houston, Texas. 

 

 

11.  ADJOURN 

MOTION: WOMACK  SECOND: GEARING 
Motion passed with unanimous affirmative votes 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:36 A.M. 

 

         

 

 
 

Page 8 of 533



 

 
Board of Trustees 

June 23, 2021 

MINUTES 

Page 6 of 6 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Veronica Franco, Board Liaison  

Shaukat Zakaria, Secretary, Board of Trustees 

The HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD 

Page 9 of 533





The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

For the Tenth Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Fiscal Year 2021

Presented to the Resource Committee of the Board of Trustees on July 20, 2021

Financial Report

Page 10 of 533



Page 11 of 533



Actual Budget Variance
Revenues 20,998$         21,116$         (118)$             
Expenditures 23,219 23,772 554

Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (2,220)$          (2,656)$          436$              

Actual Budget Variance
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 22,837$         (808)$             23,645$  

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Financial Summary

For the Tenth Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Month (,000)

Year-to-date (,000)

Page 2

Page 12 of 533



Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ %

Total Revenues:
Harris County and Local 4,322,353$          4,315,514$          6,839$  0% 46,745,433$        43,097,914$        3,647,519$          8%
PAP / Samples 1,037,423 1,583,323 (545,900) -34% 12,107,719 15,833,230 (3,725,511)           -24%
Interest 3,932 41,666 (37,734) c -91% 111,249 416,660 (305,411)              -73%
State General 9,575,838 9,642,307 (66,469) -1% 96,061,647 96,423,095 (361,448)              0%
State Grants 1,473,707 891,778 581,929 d 65% 9,860,801 9,004,056 856,745               10%
Federal Grants 1,265,612 1,063,105 202,507 19% 16,690,685 10,631,047 6,059,638            57%
3rd party billings 3,319,400 3,578,472 (259,072) e -7% 30,911,158 34,013,307 (3,102,149)           -9%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------
Total Revenue 20,998,265 21,116,165 (117,900) f -1% 212,488,692 209,419,309 3,069,383 1%

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 14,553,378 15,924,521 1,371,143 g 9% 159,664,096 159,259,116 (404,980) 0%
Travel 58,007 193,674 135,667 70% 476,653 1,686,589 1,209,936            72%
Contracts and Consultants 1,711,674 1,803,375 91,701 5% 16,387,750 18,072,121 1,684,371            9%
HCPC Contract 2,327,336 2,369,794 42,458 2% 23,416,597 23,707,940 291,343               1%
Supplies and Drugs 1,336,398 1,902,142 565,744 30% 15,268,124 19,032,945 3,764,821            20%
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 1,986,486 377,760 (1,608,726) h -426% 12,003,819 3,785,660 (8,218,159)           -217%
Building (Purch, Rent, Maint) 330,247 283,771 (46,476) i -16% 11,780,548 2,831,458 (8,949,090)           -316%
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 30,763 28,249 (2,514) -9% 124,827 283,565 158,738               56%
Telephone and Utilities 228,588 223,000 (5,588) -3% 2,098,867 2,229,842 130,975               6%
Insurance, Legal, Audit 138,657 137,845 (812) -1% 1,588,771 1,378,221 (210,550)              -15%
Note Payments - - - 0% 552,424 588,597 36,173 6%
Other 472,434 460,485 (11,949) -3% 4,064,298 4,671,136 606,838               13%
Claims Denials 44,534 67,533 22,999 34% 608,437 675,318 66,881 10%
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - 0% - - - 0.0%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -----------
Total Expenses 23,218,502 23,772,149 553,647 j 2% 248,035,211 238,202,508 (9,832,703) -4%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (2,220,237) a (2,655,984) 435,747 (35,546,519) (28,783,199) (6,763,320)

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx 1,578,188            - 1,578,188 8,625,694            - 8,625,694 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - 3,568,270            - 3,568,270 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,230               629,230               - 6,299,431            6,300,810            (1,379) 
Waiver 1115 Revenues 2,167,484            2,167,484            - 21,674,861          21,674,861          - 
DSRIP Transition 1,809,411            - 1,809,411 17,212,866          - 17,212,866 
COVID-19 FMAP Allocation - - - - - -
Insurance Proceeds - - - 981,430               - 981,430 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - 21,125 - 21,125 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - -

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 3,964,076$          140,730$             3,823,346$          22,837,158$        b (807,528)$            23,644,686$        

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

Favorable  or (Unfavorable) Favorable  or (Unfavorable)

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget 

Month Ended June 30, 2021 Ten Months Ended June 30, 2021

Variance Variance

For the Tenth Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Page 3

Page 13 of 533



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 5,361,035$          5,935,695$          2,673$  4,808$  - - 
State General Revenue 9,557,885            9,624,354            17,953 17,953 - - 
State Grants 1,473,707            891,778 - - - - 
Federal Grants 1,265,612            1,063,105            - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 3,976,895            1,705,260            - - 
3rd party billings 3,273,933            3,481,087            45,467 97,385 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 20,932,172          20,996,019          4,042,988            1,825,406            - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 13,495,702          14,537,799          1,057,676            1,386,722            - - 
Travel 56,091 180,893 1,916 12,781 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 1,598,493            1,685,666            113,181 117,709 - - 
HCPC Contract 2,327,336            2,369,794            - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 1,320,330            1,878,589            16,068 23,553 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 359,378 301,054 136,480 76,706 1,490,628            - 
Building (Rent, Maint) - 148,529 242,687 135,242 87,560 - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 26,419 16,539 4,344 11,710 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 201,713 183,376 26,875 39,624 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 110,352 107,747 28,305 30,098 - - 
Note Payments - - - - - - 
Other 460,514 436,841 11,920 23,644 - - 
Claims Denials 44,465 67,038 69 495 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 20,000,793          21,913,865          1,639,521            1,858,284            1,578,188            - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources 931,379 (917,846)              2,403,467            (32,878) (1,578,188)           - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 1,578,188            - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,230 629,230 - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds - - - - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 1,560,609$          (288,616)$            2,403,467$          (32,878)$              -$                         -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

For The Month Ended June 30, 2021

Month Ended June 30, 2021

Page 4

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)

Page 14 of 533



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 58,931,201$        59,299,724$        33,200$  48,080$  $ $
State General Revenue 95,882,117          96,243,565          179,530 179,530 - - 
State Grants 9,860,801            9,004,056            - - - - 
Federal Grants 16,690,685          10,631,047          - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 38,887,727 17,052,599 - - 
3rd party billings 29,951,394          33,041,245          959,764 972,062 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 211,316,198        208,219,637        40,060,221          18,252,271          - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 147,157,889        145,242,326        12,506,207          14,016,790          - - 
Travel 464,501 1,565,400            12,152 121,189 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 15,543,238          16,896,570          844,512 1,175,551            - - 
HCPC Contract 23,416,597          23,707,940          - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 15,143,725          18,799,628          124,399 233,317 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 3,967,824            3,006,575            685,883 779,085 7,350,112 - 
Building (Purch,Rent, Maint) 9,211,940            1,329,702            1,293,026            1,501,756            1,275,582 - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 97,916 168,465 26,911 115,100 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 1,935,386            1,832,655            163,481 397,187 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 1,306,749            1,076,983            282,022 301,238 - - 
Note Payments - - 552,424 552,424 - - 
Other 3,906,443            4,435,529            157,855 235,607 - - 
Claims Denials 594,973 670,368 13,464 4,950 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 222,747,181        218,732,141        16,662,336          19,434,194          8,625,694            - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (11,430,983)         (10,512,504)         23,397,885          (1,181,923)           (8,625,694)           - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 8,625,694            - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 3,568,270            - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 6,299,431            6,300,810            - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds 979,570 - 1,860 - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 21,125 - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (562,587)$            (4,211,694)$         23,399,745$        (1,181,923)$         -$  -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

- 

For the Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Ten Months Ended June 30, 2021

Page 5

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)

Page 15 of 533



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparative Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2021

Ending Balance Increase/(Decrease)
May 31, 2021 June 30, 2021 June

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 107,068,947$           115,147,222$          8,078,275$              a
Inventory - includes RX 308,972 304,877 (4,095) b
Prepaid Expenses 2,036,699 2,563,932 527,233 c
A/R Medicaid, Medicare, 3rd Party 13,175,303               14,863,471               1,688,168 
    Less Bad Debt Reserve (4,426,086) (5,884,594)               (1,458,508) 
A/R Other 23,143,131               24,260,223               1,117,092 d
A/R DSRIP 34,401,618               41,180,372               6,778,754 e
Total Current Assets 175,708,583             192,435,503            16,726,919              

Land 5,028,114 5,028,114 - 
Building 25,773,792               25,773,792               - 
Building Improvements 20,863,609               20,863,609               - 
Furniture and Fixtures 9,918,071 9,882,776 (35,295) 
Vehicles 1,605,231 1,605,231 - 
Construction in Progress 11,370,876               12,973,806               1,602,930 
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 74,559,693               76,127,328               1,567,635 

TOTAL ASSETS 250,268,276$           268,562,831$          18,294,554$            

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned Income 37,016,471$             48,992,867$            11,976,396$            f
Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payables 22,860,253               25,855,741               2,995,488 g
Current Portion Long Term Debt - - - 
Total Current Liabilities 59,876,724               74,848,608               14,971,884              

State Escheatment Payable 36,372 34,746 (1,626) 
Total Non Current Liabilities 36,372 34,746 (1,626) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 59,913,097               74,883,354               14,970,258              

General Fund Balance 20,082,604               20,086,704               4,100 h
Nonspendable

Investment in Inventories 308,972 304,877 (4,095) 
Investment In Fixed Assets 74,559,693               76,127,328               1,567,635 

Assigned:
Current Capital Projects 23,434,381               21,856,193               (1,578,188) i
Future Purchases of Real Property and IT Infrastructure 1,365,842 1,365,842 - 
   Debt Repayment - - - 
   Self Insurance 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 
   ECI Building Use 361,664 361,664 - 
   Waiver 1115 42,068,799               41,439,569               (629,230) 
   COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 2,445,788 2,445,788 - 
   Compensated Absences 4,854,354 4,854,354 - 
Total 171,482,097             170,842,319            (639,778) 

Year to Date Excess Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 18,873,082 22,837,158               3,964,076 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 190,355,179             193,679,477            3,324,298 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 250,268,276$           268,562,831$          18,294,556$            

Page 6

Page 16 of 533



Page 7 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports 

For Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021 

I. Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget

a. For the month of June 2021, the tenth month of the fiscal year, The Harris Center is reporting Excess Expenditures over
Revenues of $2,220,237.

b. The year-to-date amount translates to Excess Revenues over Expenditures of $22,837,158 after use of fund balance, fund
balance CapEx, fund balance DSRIP, Waiver 1115 revenues, insurance proceeds and DSRIP transition are considered.

c. Interest is unfavorable to budget by $37,734 because of lower interest rates caused by Federal Reserve interest rate
reductions in response to the economic downturn from the COVID-19 pandemic.

d. State Grants is favorable to budget by $581,929 primarily due to timing of ECI revenues.

e. Third Party Billings is unfavorable to budget by $259,072.

f. Total Revenue is unfavorable to budget by $117,900.

g. Salaries and Fringe Benefits are favorable to budget by $1,371,143.

h. Equipment is unfavorable to budget by $1,608,726. Equipment purchases exceeding budget were covered by funds
designated by the Board through Fund Balance-Capex designations. This includes such items as the final payment for our
Epic software this month in the amount of $1,046,144.

i. Building is unfavorable to original budget by $46,476, due to building related expenses included in grants awarded after
approval of the original budget.

j. Total Expenses are favorable to budget by $553,647.

Page 17 of 533



Page 8 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents The agency considers cash and cash equivalents to be cash on hand, demand deposit accounts and
short term investments with maturities of less than ninety days. Cash and cash equivalents decreased from the prior month because
of operations.

Page 18 of 533



Page 9 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

b. Inventory normally does not significantly change from month to month. The balance is normally only updated annually at the time of
the year end physical inventory. PAP/Drug Samples are not included in inventory, as this inventory does not belong to the Center.
Inventory consists of the following:

c. Prepaid Expenses increased because of HCPC activity.

Page 19 of 533



Page 10 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other increased in June.

Page 20 of 533



Page 11 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other (continued)

e. A/R DSRIP increased as the Center adjusted for DSRIP funding owed to the Center.

Page 21 of 533



Page 12 

f. Unearned Income increased due to receipt of State GR Funds.

g. Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payable increased because of payment timing related to accounts payable, payroll, and employee
fringe benefit liabilities.

h. General Fund Balance increased because of operations.

i. Current Capital Projects decreased because of funding various Board approved capital projects for fiscal year 2021.

j. Days of Operation in Reserve for Total Agency is 159 days and for Core Business is 98 days versus 157 and 93 days for the prior
month, respectively.

III. Investment Portfolio

a. Total investments as of June 30, 2021, is $63,819,976 of which 100% is in government pools (Texas Class 49% and TexPool 51%).

b. Investments this month yielded interest income of $3,933.

Page 22 of 533



THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 
June 30, 2021

Issuer CUSIP/ Security # Book Value              
Cost Transfer In Txpool/ TX Class

Transfer  Out      Tx 
pool/ TX Class

Interest       Txpool/ 
TX Class

Allowance 
Unrealized G/L

Market Value 
Ending Balance

Market Value 
Beginning Balance Portfolio %

Interest 
Accrual

Coupon 
Rate

Settlement 
Date

GOVERNMENT POOLS
TEXAS CLASS - GF G/L 120700 46,219,160            - (15,000,000) 1,568 31,220,727            48.92% 0.0611%

TEXPOOL    ISF G/L 120610 2,288,859              - - 25 2,288,884              3.59% 0.0131%
TEXPOOL   GF G/L 120600 1,001,549              - - 11 1,001,560              1.57% 0.0131%
TEXPOOL PRIME G/L 120620 41,806,476            - (12,500,000) 2,329 29,308,805            45.92% 0.0708%

Subtotal Texpool 43,086,969            - (12,500,000) 2,365 32,599,249            51.08%

Subtotal Government Pools 95,795,588            - (27,500,000) 3,933 63,819,976            100.00%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 95,795,588$          -$  (27,500,000)$                3,933$  -$  63,819,976$          100.00%

Total Investment Interest G/L 409000 & 409005 3,933 3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
- 3 Month Weighted Average Yield 0.0721%

Total Interest 3,933$  3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 0.0167%

Page 13

Page 23 of 533



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Report for June 2021

Vendor Description Monthly Not-To-Exceed* Jun-21
YTD Total 

(Apr -June 2021)

Lincoln Financial Group
Retirement Funds 
(401a, 403b, 457)

$1,500,000 $1,211,409 $2,741,163

UNUM Insurance
Life Insurance, AD&D, LTD, Vision, 
Individual Disablity Insurance

$220,000 $197,480 $592,949

Cigna Health and Life Insurance Health and Life Insurance $2,300,000 $2,038,106 $6,134,118

Cigna Dental Dental Insurance $100,000 $76,800 $233,713

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items effective April 28, 2021

Note: Non-employee portion of June 2021 Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits = 10% of Expenditures.

Page 14

Page 24 of 533





The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD

For the Tenth Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Fiscal Year 2021

Presented to the Resource Committee of the Board of Trustees on July 20, 2021

Financial Report

Page 25 of 533



Page 26 of 533



Actual Budget Variance
Revenues 20,998$         21,116$         (118)$             
Expenditures 23,219 23,772 554

Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (2,220)$          (2,656)$          436$              

Actual Budget Variance
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 22,837$         (808)$             23,645$  

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Financial Summary

For the Tenth Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Month (,000)

Year-to-date (,000)

Page 2

Page 27 of 533



Actual Budget $ % Actual Budget $ %

Total Revenues:
Harris County and Local 4,322,353$          4,315,514$          6,839$  0% 46,745,433$        43,097,914$        3,647,519$          8%
PAP / Samples 1,037,423 1,583,323 (545,900) -34% 12,107,719 15,833,230 (3,725,511)           -24%
Interest 3,932 41,666 (37,734) c -91% 111,249 416,660 (305,411)              -73%
State General 9,575,838 9,642,307 (66,469) -1% 96,061,647 96,423,095 (361,448)              0%
State Grants 1,473,707 891,778 581,929 d 65% 9,860,801 9,004,056 856,745               10%
Federal Grants 1,265,612 1,063,105 202,507 19% 16,690,685 10,631,047 6,059,638            57%
3rd party billings 3,319,400 3,578,472 (259,072) e -7% 30,911,158 34,013,307 (3,102,149)           -9%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -------------
Total Revenue 20,998,265 21,116,165 (117,900) f -1% 212,488,692 209,419,309 3,069,383 1%

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 14,553,378 15,924,521 1,371,143 g 9% 159,664,096 159,259,116 (404,980) 0%
Travel 58,007 193,674 135,667 70% 476,653 1,686,589 1,209,936            72%
Contracts and Consultants 1,711,674 1,803,375 91,701 5% 16,387,750 18,072,121 1,684,371            9%
HCPC Contract 2,327,336 2,369,794 42,458 2% 23,416,597 23,707,940 291,343               1%
Supplies and Drugs 1,336,398 1,902,142 565,744 30% 15,268,124 19,032,945 3,764,821            20%
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 1,986,486 377,760 (1,608,726) h -426% 12,003,819 3,785,660 (8,218,159)           -217%
Building (Purch, Rent, Maint) 330,247 283,771 (46,476) i -16% 11,780,548 2,831,458 (8,949,090)           -316%
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 30,763 28,249 (2,514) -9% 124,827 283,565 158,738               56%
Telephone and Utilities 228,588 223,000 (5,588) -3% 2,098,867 2,229,842 130,975               6%
Insurance, Legal, Audit 138,657 137,845 (812) -1% 1,588,771 1,378,221 (210,550)              -15%
Note Payments - - - 0% 552,424 588,597 36,173 6%
Other 472,434 460,485 (11,949) -3% 4,064,298 4,671,136 606,838               13%
Claims Denials 44,534 67,533 22,999 34% 608,437 675,318 66,881 10%
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - 0% - - - 0.0%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- -----------
Total Expenses 23,218,502 23,772,149 553,647 j 2% 248,035,211 238,202,508 (9,832,703) -4%

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (2,220,237) a (2,655,984) 435,747 (35,546,519) (28,783,199) (6,763,320)

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx 1,578,188            - 1,578,188 8,625,694            - 8,625,694 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - 3,568,270            - 3,568,270 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,230               629,230               - 6,299,431            6,300,810            (1,379) 
Waiver 1115 Revenues 2,167,484            2,167,484            - 21,674,861          21,674,861          - 
DSRIP Transition 1,809,411            - 1,809,411 17,212,866          - 17,212,866 
COVID-19 FMAP Allocation - - - - - -
Insurance Proceeds - - - 981,430               - 981,430 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - 21,125 - 21,125 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - -

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 3,964,076$          140,730$             3,823,346$          22,837,158$        b (807,528)$            23,644,686$        

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

Favorable  or (Unfavorable) Favorable  or (Unfavorable)

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget 

Month Ended June 30, 2021 Ten Months Ended June 30, 2021

Variance Variance

For the Tenth Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Page 3

Page 28 of 533



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 5,361,035$          5,935,695$          2,673$  4,808$  - - 
State General Revenue 9,557,885            9,624,354            17,953 17,953 - - 
State Grants 1,473,707            891,778 - - - - 
Federal Grants 1,265,612            1,063,105            - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 3,976,895            1,705,260            - - 
3rd party billings 3,273,933            3,481,087            45,467 97,385 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 20,932,172          20,996,019          4,042,988            1,825,406            - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 13,495,702          14,537,799          1,057,676            1,386,722            - - 
Travel 56,091 180,893 1,916 12,781 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 1,598,493            1,685,666            113,181 117,709 - - 
HCPC Contract 2,327,336            2,369,794            - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 1,320,330            1,878,589            16,068 23,553 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 359,378 301,054 136,480 76,706 1,490,628            - 
Building (Rent, Maint) - 148,529 242,687 135,242 87,560 - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 26,419 16,539 4,344 11,710 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 201,713 183,376 26,875 39,624 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 110,352 107,747 28,305 30,098 - - 
Note Payments - - - - - - 
Other 460,514 436,841 11,920 23,644 - - 
Claims Denials 44,465 67,038 69 495 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 20,000,793          21,913,865          1,639,521            1,858,284            1,578,188            - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources 931,379 (917,846)              2,403,467            (32,878) (1,578,188)           - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 1,578,188            - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 - - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 629,230 629,230 - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds - - - - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets - - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources 1,560,609$          (288,616)$            2,403,467$          (32,878)$              -$                         -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

For The Month Ended June 30, 2021

Month Ended June 30, 2021

Page 4

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)

Page 29 of 533



Core Business DSRIP Capital Expenditures

Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

Total Revenues:
Local 58,931,201$        59,299,724$        33,200$  48,080$  $ $
State General Revenue 95,882,117          96,243,565          179,530 179,530 - - 
State Grants 9,860,801            9,004,056            - - - - 
Federal Grants 16,690,685          10,631,047          - - - - 
Federal Revenue - DSRIP - - 38,887,727 17,052,599 - - 
3rd party billings 29,951,394          33,041,245          959,764 972,062 - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Revenue 211,316,198        208,219,637        40,060,221          18,252,271          - - 

Total Expenses:
Salaries and Fringe 147,157,889        145,242,326        12,506,207          14,016,790          - - 
Travel 464,501 1,565,400            12,152 121,189 - - 
Contracts and Consultant 15,543,238          16,896,570          844,512 1,175,551            - - 
HCPC Contract 23,416,597          23,707,940          - - - - 
Supplies and Drugs 15,143,725          18,799,628          124,399 233,317 - - 
Equipment (Purch, Rent, Maint) 3,967,824            3,006,575            685,883 779,085 7,350,112 - 
Building (Purch,Rent, Maint) 9,211,940            1,329,702            1,293,026            1,501,756            1,275,582 - 
Vehicle (Purch, Rent, Maint) 97,916 168,465 26,911 115,100 - - 
Telephone and Utilities 1,935,386            1,832,655            163,481 397,187 - - 
Insurance, Legal, Audit 1,306,749            1,076,983            282,022 301,238 - - 
Note Payments - - 552,424 552,424 - - 
Other 3,906,443            4,435,529            157,855 235,607 - - 
Claims Denials 594,973 670,368 13,464 4,950 - - 
Reserve for Bad Debt - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Total Expenses 222,747,181        218,732,141        16,662,336          19,434,194          8,625,694            - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures before Other Sources (11,430,983)         (10,512,504)         23,397,885          (1,181,923)           (8,625,694)           - 

Funds from other sources:
Use of  fund balance - CapEx - - - - 8,625,694            - 
Use of  fund balance - COVID-19 3,568,270            - - - - - 
Fund Balance DSRIP 6,299,431            6,300,810            - - - - 
Insurance Proceeds 979,570 - 1,860 - - - 
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 21,125 - - - - - 
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Securities - - - - - - 

---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ---------------------- ----------------------
Excess of Revenues over (under)
     Expenditures after Other Sources (562,587)$            (4,211,694)$         23,399,745$        (1,181,923)$         -$  -$  

============ ============ ============ ============ ============ ============

- 

For the Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021

Ten Months Ended June 30, 2021

Page 5

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparison of Revenues and Expenses- Core Business and DSRIP

Management Use Only (Non-GAAP)

Page 30 of 533



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Comparative Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2021

Ending Balance Increase/(Decrease)
May 31, 2021 June 30, 2021 June

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 107,068,947$           115,147,222$          8,078,275$              a
Inventory - includes RX 308,972 304,877 (4,095) b
Prepaid Expenses 2,036,699 2,563,932 527,233 c
A/R Medicaid, Medicare, 3rd Party 13,175,303               14,863,471               1,688,168 
    Less Bad Debt Reserve (4,426,086) (5,884,594)               (1,458,508) 
A/R Other 23,143,131               24,260,223               1,117,092 d
A/R DSRIP 34,401,618               41,180,372               6,778,754 e
Total Current Assets 175,708,583             192,435,503            16,726,919              

Land 5,028,114 5,028,114 - 
Building 25,773,792               25,773,792               - 
Building Improvements 20,863,609               20,863,609               - 
Furniture and Fixtures 9,918,071 9,882,776 (35,295) 
Vehicles 1,605,231 1,605,231 - 
Construction in Progress 11,370,876               12,973,806               1,602,930 
Total Property, Plant & Equipment 74,559,693               76,127,328               1,567,635 

TOTAL ASSETS 250,268,276$           268,562,831$          18,294,554$            

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unearned Income 37,016,471$             48,992,867$            11,976,396$            f
Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payables 22,860,253               25,855,741               2,995,488 g
Current Portion Long Term Debt - - - 
Total Current Liabilities 59,876,724               74,848,608               14,971,884              

State Escheatment Payable 36,372 34,746 (1,626) 
Total Non Current Liabilities 36,372 34,746 (1,626) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 59,913,097               74,883,354               14,970,258              

General Fund Balance 20,082,604               20,086,704               4,100 h
Nonspendable

Investment in Inventories 308,972 304,877 (4,095) 
Investment In Fixed Assets 74,559,693               76,127,328               1,567,635 

Assigned:
Current Capital Projects 23,434,381               21,856,193               (1,578,188) i
Future Purchases of Real Property and IT Infrastructure 1,365,842 1,365,842 - 
   Debt Repayment - - - 
   Self Insurance 2,000,000 2,000,000 - 
   ECI Building Use 361,664 361,664 - 
   Waiver 1115 42,068,799               41,439,569               (629,230) 
   COVID-19 eFMAP Reserve 2,445,788 2,445,788 - 
   Compensated Absences 4,854,354 4,854,354 - 
Total 171,482,097             170,842,319            (639,778) 

Year to Date Excess Revenues over
(under) Expenditures 18,873,082 22,837,158               3,964,076 

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 190,355,179             193,679,477            3,324,298 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 250,268,276$           268,562,831$          18,294,556$            

Page 6

Page 31 of 533



Page 7 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
Notes to the Preliminary Financial Reports 

For Month and Year to Date Ended June 30, 2021 

I. Comparison of Revenue and Expenses - Actual to Budget

a. For the month of June 2021, the tenth month of the fiscal year, The Harris Center is reporting Excess Expenditures over
Revenues of $2,220,237.

b. The year-to-date amount translates to Excess Revenues over Expenditures of $22,837,158 after use of fund balance, fund
balance CapEx, fund balance DSRIP, Waiver 1115 revenues, insurance proceeds and DSRIP transition are considered.

c. Interest is unfavorable to budget by $37,734 because of lower interest rates caused by Federal Reserve interest rate
reductions in response to the economic downturn from the COVID-19 pandemic.

d. State Grants is favorable to budget by $581,929 primarily due to timing of ECI revenues.

e. Third Party Billings is unfavorable to budget by $259,072.

f. Total Revenue is unfavorable to budget by $117,900.

g. Salaries and Fringe Benefits are favorable to budget by $1,371,143.

h. Equipment is unfavorable to budget by $1,608,726. Equipment purchases exceeding budget were covered by funds
designated by the Board through Fund Balance-Capex designations. This includes such items as the final payment for our
Epic software this month in the amount of $1,046,144.

i. Building is unfavorable to original budget by $46,476, due to building related expenses included in grants awarded after
approval of the original budget.

j. Total Expenses are favorable to budget by $553,647.

Page 32 of 533



Page 8 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents The agency considers cash and cash equivalents to be cash on hand, demand deposit accounts and
short term investments with maturities of less than ninety days. Cash and cash equivalents decreased from the prior month because
of operations.

Page 33 of 533



Page 9 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

b. Inventory normally does not significantly change from month to month. The balance is normally only updated annually at the time of
the year end physical inventory. PAP/Drug Samples are not included in inventory, as this inventory does not belong to the Center.
Inventory consists of the following:

c. Prepaid Expenses increased because of HCPC activity.

Page 34 of 533



Page 10 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other increased in June.

Page 35 of 533



Page 11 

II. Comparative Balance Sheet (continued)

d. Account Receivable Other (continued)

e. A/R DSRIP increased as the Center adjusted for DSRIP funding owed to the Center.

Page 36 of 533



Page 12 

f. Unearned Income increased due to receipt of State GR Funds.

g. Accrued Payroll and Accounts Payable increased because of payment timing related to accounts payable, payroll, and employee
fringe benefit liabilities.

h. General Fund Balance increased because of operations.

i. Current Capital Projects decreased because of funding various Board approved capital projects for fiscal year 2021.

j. Days of Operation in Reserve for Total Agency is 159 days and for Core Business is 98 days versus 157 and 93 days for the prior
month, respectively.

III. Investment Portfolio

a. Total investments as of June 30, 2021, is $63,819,976 of which 100% is in government pools (Texas Class 49% and TexPool 51%).

b. Investments this month yielded interest income of $3,933.

Page 37 of 533



THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND IDD
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 
June 30, 2021

Issuer CUSIP/ Security # Book Value              
Cost Transfer In Txpool/ TX Class

Transfer  Out      Tx 
pool/ TX Class

Interest       Txpool/ 
TX Class

Allowance 
Unrealized G/L

Market Value 
Ending Balance

Market Value 
Beginning Balance Portfolio %

Interest 
Accrual

Coupon 
Rate

Settlement 
Date

GOVERNMENT POOLS
TEXAS CLASS - GF G/L 120700 46,219,160            - (15,000,000) 1,568 31,220,727            48.92% 0.0611%

TEXPOOL    ISF G/L 120610 2,288,859              - - 25 2,288,884              3.59% 0.0131%
TEXPOOL   GF G/L 120600 1,001,549              - - 11 1,001,560              1.57% 0.0131%
TEXPOOL PRIME G/L 120620 41,806,476            - (12,500,000) 2,329 29,308,805            45.92% 0.0708%

Subtotal Texpool 43,086,969            - (12,500,000) 2,365 32,599,249            51.08%

Subtotal Government Pools 95,795,588            - (27,500,000) 3,933 63,819,976            100.00%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 95,795,588$          -$  (27,500,000)$                3,933$  -$  63,819,976$          100.00%

Total Investment Interest G/L 409000 & 409005 3,933 3 Month Weighted Average Maturity (Days) 1.00
- 3 Month Weighted Average Yield 0.0721%

Total Interest 3,933$  3 Month Rolling Weighted Average Daily Treasury Bill Rate (4 weeks) 0.0167%

Page 13

Page 38 of 533



The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD
Monthly Report of Financial Transactions Related to Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits

Report for June 2021

Vendor Description Monthly Not-To-Exceed* Jun-21
YTD Total 

(Apr -June 2021)

Lincoln Financial Group
Retirement Funds 
(401a, 403b, 457)

$1,500,000 $1,211,409 $2,741,163

UNUM Insurance
Life Insurance, AD&D, LTD, Vision, 
Individual Disablity Insurance

$220,000 $197,480 $592,949

Cigna Health and Life Insurance Health and Life Insurance $2,300,000 $2,038,106 $6,134,118

Cigna Dental Dental Insurance $100,000 $76,800 $233,713

* As established by the Board Resolution: Harris Center Board of Trustees Signature Authorization and Delegation Authority for Certain Items effective April 28, 2021

Note: Non-employee portion of June 2021 Payments of Liabilities for Employee Benefits = 10% of Expenditures.

Page 14

Page 39 of 533





Page 40 of 533



Page 41 of 533



Page 42 of 533



Page 43 of 533



Page 44 of 533



Page 45 of 533





Page 46 of 533



Page 47 of 533



Page 48 of 533



Page 49 of 533



Page 50 of 533



Page 51 of 533



Page 52 of 533



Page 53 of 533



Page 54 of 533



Page 55 of 533



Page 56 of 533



Page 57 of 533



Page 58 of 533



Page 59 of 533



Page 60 of 533



Page 61 of 533



Page 62 of 533



Page 63 of 533



Page 64 of 533



Page 65 of 533



Page 66 of 533



Page 67 of 533



Page 68 of 533



Page 69 of 533



Page 70 of 533



Page 71 of 533



Page 72 of 533



Page 73 of 533



Page 74 of 533



Page 75 of 533



Page 76 of 533



Page 77 of 533



Page 78 of 533



Page 79 of 533



Page 80 of 533



Page 81 of 533



Page 82 of 533



Page 83 of 533



Page 84 of 533



Page 85 of 533



Page 86 of 533



Page 87 of 533



Page 88 of 533



Page 89 of 533



Page 90 of 533



Page 91 of 533



Page 92 of 533



Page 93 of 533



Page 94 of 533



Page 95 of 533



Page 96 of 533



Page 97 of 533



Page 98 of 533



Page 99 of 533



Page 100 of 533



Page 101 of 533



Page 102 of 533



Page 103 of 533



Page 104 of 533



Page 105 of 533



Page 106 of 533



Page 107 of 533



Page 108 of 533



Page 109 of 533



Page 110 of 533



Page 111 of 533



Page 112 of 533



Page 113 of 533



Page 114 of 533



Page 115 of 533



Page 116 of 533



Page 117 of 533



Page 118 of 533



Page 119 of 533



Page 120 of 533



Page 121 of 533





Page 122 of 533



Page 123 of 533



Page 124 of 533



Page 125 of 533



Page 126 of 533



Page 127 of 533



Page 128 of 533



Page 129 of 533



Page 130 of 533



Page 131 of 533



Page 132 of 533



Page 133 of 533



Page 134 of 533



Page 135 of 533



Page 136 of 533



Page 137 of 533



Page 138 of 533



Page 139 of 533



Page 140 of 533



Page 141 of 533



Page 142 of 533



Page 143 of 533





Page 144 of 533



Page 145 of 533



Page 146 of 533



Page 147 of 533



Page 148 of 533



Page 149 of 533



Page 150 of 533



Page 151 of 533



Page 152 of 533



Page 153 of 533



Page 154 of 533



Page 155 of 533



Page 156 of 533



Page 157 of 533



Page 158 of 533



Page 159 of 533



Page 160 of 533



Page 161 of 533



Page 162 of 533





THE HARRIS CENTER for Mental Health and IDD

Disaster & Emergency Response Plan

Approved By: ______________________       Date: _________

Wayne Young, CEO/Executive Director

THE HARRIS CENTER Mental Health and IDD

Page 163 of 533



2

HARRIS CENTER DISASTER & EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN

A. Purpose
This section contains a written description of the Harris Center Disaster & Emergency 
Response Plan (“Plan”) including information on how The Harris Center will act or 
proceed in the event a disaster occurs, the response duties of The Harris Center 
management, and coordination plans with staff and the public.  For the purposes of this 
Plan a disaster and/or emergency is defined as a natural disaster or anticipated natural 
disaster, threat to public safety, or national security emergency.  Disaster events may 
include fires, essential equipment failures, epidemic/pandemic and terrorism. Each 
Harris Center program will develop a disaster and emergency plan specific to their 
operations, which shall be incorporated by reference to this Plan.  The program specific 
plans, as outlined in Section I, shall complement the Harris Center’s Plan for detailed 
actions specific to the service unit and physical location.  

B. Scope   
The information in the document effects all operations and programs of The Harris 
Center.  While the Plan may be of interest to contractors of The Harris Center, it does 
not obligate them. The Harris Center, however, expects all program contracts to have 
disaster and emergency plans developed and available for review. This program specific 
plans will be posted for public view, and The Harris Center Disaster & Emergency 
Response Plan will be posted on The Harris Center’s external website. The Plan will also 
be shared with Texas Health and Human Services upon request during any audit or 
review. Harris Center staff are required to be trained on the program specific plan 
within thirty (30) days of hire and at least annually thereafter. Just in time training may 
occur as a result of a response to specific emergency and/or disaster event. This Plan 
incorporates the program specific emergency plans and procedures, Safety Program and 
The Harris Center Risk Management Plan by reference.

The information in the Plan is reviewed and revised as needed.

C. National Incident Management System (NIMS) Overview
The National Incident Management System (NIMS) is a comprehensive, nationwide 
systematic approach to incident management. NIMS is flexible due to its application to 
any incident regardless of cause, size, location, or complexity. In addition, its principles 
are to be utilized to develop all-hazard plans and procedures. Lastly, NIMS provides an 
organized set of scalable and standardized operational structures. This standard is 
critical for allowing various organizations and agencies to work together in a predictable, 
coordinated manner. 

One major component of NIMS is the Incident Command System (ICS). ICS is a 
management tool that includes 14 key features that has become the standard for 

Page 164 of 533



3

managing emergencies across the country. ICS may be used for planned events, natural 
disasters, and acts of terrorism. This response plan is in compliance with NIMS and the 
14 features of ICS.

One key feature of ICS is “Management by Objectives.” Objectives and initial decisions 
for any emergency should be based on the following three (3) priorities:

1. Life Safety
2. Incident Stabilization
3. Property Preservation

These priorities are utilized to establish objectives. General Emergency Planning 
Objectives include:

1. Save lives and prevent injuries
2. Promote an effective action in responding to emergencies
3. Minimize loss of campus property

Restore conditions to normal and with minimal disruption

D.        Disaster Command Staff (DCS) 
The role of The Harris Center’s Disaster Command Staff is to direct preparedness and 
response activities on behalf of The Harris Center.  This is a decision-making body for the 
sole purpose of disaster preparation and response.  

1. The Disaster Command Staff shall be organized as follows:
 Incident Command

a. Operations
b. Logistics
c. Planning
d. Finance

2. Scope of Responsibilities
Incident Command: 
Incident Command Officer: Makes decisions in response to disasters and 
emergencies.  Decisions to respond to emergencies should be made, if possible, 
after consultation with the Liaison Officer.  The Incident Command Officer is 
responsible for assuring coordinated and effective emergency response plans are 
developed and maintained throughout The Harris Center.  The Incident Commander 
is responsible for activating plans when a crisis has been declared and establishing 
the internal command center. 

The Liaison Officer serves as liaison to city, county, and state emergency 
management teams. The Liaison Officer provides the Incident Commander with 
updates on national weather advisories, updates from community partners, and 
responses from local human service agencies. The Liaison Officer ensures that 
critical incident response personnel are trained and available as needed in disaster 

Page 165 of 533



4

situations and as required by the Texas Health and Human Services (HHS) 
Performance Contract. 

The Information Officer serves as the internal and external communication source 
for The Harris Center. The Information Officer communicates with the Incident 
Command Officer to determine communications that will be sent on behalf of The 
Harris Center. 

a. Operations:  The Operations Division assures administrative functions and 
personnel are available to support operations, including physicians, clinicians, 
and nurses. Operations is responsible for developing a tactical organization and 
directing resources to carry out the incident Action Plan, including personnel 
resource coordination to shelters to assure operational objectives for service 
provision are achieved. Assures that contracts and grants concerning disaster 
responder personnel are implemented as necessary; providing management and 
oversight of them. 

b. Logistics: Responsible for ensuring emergency communication systems are 
operational, with emphasis on assisting internet platforms and Help to maintain 
lines of communication for internal and external information.  Also assures that 
the information technology component of The Harris Center operations is 
protected as much as possible against possible disruption.  Logistics will 
coordinate with other divisions for safe removal of employees and consumers 
and maintain supply chain. 

c. Planning: Develops Incident Action Plan to accomplish the Agency’s objectives. 
Provide planning services for both current and future activities. Provide a safe 
operating environment within all parts of the incident organization, to include 
power and water utilities. 

d. Finance: Provides overall fiscal guidance. Provide cost assessment, time 
recording, and procurement control necessary to support the incident and the 
managing of claims. Finance will be responsible for an emergency process to 
expedite purchases critical to the overall response to an incident.

E. Determination of Imminent Danger and Call Down Sequence for Emergency 
Notification
1. Disaster Notification

The Liaison Officer will monitor emergency notifications from local, state and federal 
authorities, including the National Weather Service, and participate in invited 
conference calls. Upon learning of a disaster, the Liaison Officer will notify the 
Incident Command Officer and Disaster Command Staff. See Pre Disaster Checklist in 
Attachment A.

2. Disaster Call Down Sequence
a. The Incident Commander will determine when to activate The Harris Center’s 

Page 166 of 533



5

Disaster and Emergency Plan.  When this determination has been made, the 
Incident Commander will notify the designated Disaster Command Staff that an 
emergency exists and will direct Disaster Command Staff to initiate steps to 
activate the disaster plans.  

F. Emergency Communication 
1. Staff Notification

a. In the event of a local emergency due to weather or other natural disaster, 
employees will receive notification via e-mail, text, and social media by the 
Information Officer to alert them of The Harris Center’s status. The Public 
Information Officer will establish working relationships with local media outlets. 
Once a center response has been made by the Incident Commander to close a 
building, the Public Information Officer will communicate to employees via e-
mail and text.

b. Staff are expected to tune in to local news and check The Harris Center 
communications for information pertaining to local response.

2. Community Notification
a. The Public Information Officer will coordinate with Incident Command Staff to 

review external communications and pertinent information for distribution to 
consumers and family members, as appropriate. 

b. The Public Information Officer will then inform the Houston area media, with 
particular attention paid to The Harris Center’s public and internal websites and 
other electronic media, regarding the Center's emergency plans.  The media 
information will include open/close information and the appropriate telephone 
numbers where employees and consumers can call for information: (713) 970-
7000.  The message will list sites closed and will then transfer to Help Line staff, 
if available, for further questions or concerns.

G.        Securing Vital Systems
1. Medical Records

All medical records shall be secured in the event of a disaster.  Residential programs 
shall follow their unit-specific disaster plan for medical records disposition.  On-site 
non-residential programs are to store records in a designated medical records room.  
In the event of an anticipated or actual disaster, the unit Directors of non-residential 
programs shall assure that paper records are placed on higher shelves, as conditions 
permit 

2. Data Systems
The Logistics Division will coordinate with Information Technology Services staff to 
maintain specific procedures for securing Center data systems.  To the extent 
possible, Information Technology Services should work to establish common 
equipment, communications, and data interoperability resources with local public 

Page 167 of 533



6

health and emergency management that will be used during incident response.

NOTE: In securing vital systems, the safety of consumers, staff and other people is 
paramount.  These steps are to be undertaken only to the degree that conditions 
permit.  Implementing these procedures should not jeopardize the safety of 
consumers, staff, and others.

3. Medication and PPE
Medication, supplies and equipment (i.e. personal protective equipment (PPE), 
patient care supplies) that will be used in excess during an incident response should 
be determined (based on amount of staff, potential consumers, usage time, etc.), 
ordered, and stocked on-site or in Central Supply Room prior to an incident. 
Residential programs shall take all medications and PPE with them should the 
residence be evacuated. Vocational and other day programs shall send medications 
home with the consumer(s) or staff will transport the medications with the 
consumers in the event of an evacuation. 

H. Securing Vehicles
Twenty-four to Forty-eight hours prior to anticipated landfall of a tropical disturbance, 
Logistics will coordinate moving all agency vehicles not in use to the upper covered level 
floors of Southwest clinic parking garage to prevent flooding  and debris damage. 
Vehicles shall be locked and secured, with Agency equipment removed from the 
vehicles. 

I. Response to Disasters in the Community
1. City/County

The Liaison Officer or designee will maintain information related to the City and 
County emergency response system. For non-FEMA emergencies, The Harris Center 
may provide emergency mental health services on a case-by-case basis as requested 
by civil authorities within the community (i.e., City of Houston Office of Emergency 
Management), as required by Annex H of Harris County and Annex O of the City of 
Houston.  These requests are to be implemented by the Liaison Officer upon 
approval by the Incident Command Officer. The Harris Center may also provide 
emergency mental health services requested by community partners and other non-
profit organizations (i.e. The Red Cross).

2. Texas Health and Human Services (HHS)
The Liaison Officer or designee will maintain communications with the Director of 
Behavioral Health Services at HHS for assistance and coordination of Local Mental 
Health Authority resources in the region during the disaster. Communication will 
include details of the emergency, actions taken by The Harris Center, and any future 
plans involving individuals served by The Harris Center.

Page 168 of 533



7

J. Component Specific Disaster Plans
Operational Division are responsible for the development and implementation of a 
disaster response plan that addresses all components within the division.  Each 
division/component must retain a disaster plan on site with a copy to the Director of 
Risk Management.

1. Mental Health Services
a. Clinical Component - individual site plans
b. Contract Service Providers Component - individual site plans
c. Residential Component - individual site plans
d. Vocational Component - individual site plans

2. Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Program
a. NeuroPsychiatric Center - individual site plans
b. Mobile Crisis Outreach – follow designated home office site plan
c. Crisis Help Line - individual site plans
d. Crisis Residential Unit - individual site plans

3. IDD Services
a. Clinical Component - individual site plans
c. Contract Service Providers Component - individual site plans
d. Residential Component - individual site plans
e. Vocational Component - individual site plans

4. Forensic Services
a. Adult Jail Services – individual site plans
b. Jail Diversion Center –individual site plans
c. New START – individual site plans
d. Dual Diagnosis Residential Program – individual site plans
e. Children’s Forensic Services - individual site plans

5. Support and Administration (9401 Southwest Freeway)
The emergency plan for this building is maintained by the Director of Risk 
Management.

K. Content of Component Specific Plans
Each component specific plan should contain at least the following information:
1. How consumers will be managed during an emergency, e.g., contacting guardians
2. Floor-specific site plan for multi-level buildings
3. Alternative relocation sites for consumers if evacuation is required, with an 

agreement from alternative site that they are willing to provide this service
4. Alternative relocation sites for programs if the emergency is localized to a specific 

area
5. A call down mechanism for staff and consumers to communicate emergency plans, 

to include scheduling changes
6. Securing of all medical records
7. Closing of all window blinds and drapes

Page 169 of 533



8

8. Securing all medications
9. Implementing a Shelter-in-Place procedure
10. Locking and securing all facilities being vacated
11. Securing and delivering all vehicles as instructed
12. Notifying the appropriate Deputy Director that the building is secured
13. Coverage for reduced staffing
14. Medication refills for outpatients
15. Which units are to remain open
16. Determination of supports needed from non-clinical units
17. Types of positions expected to remain
18. Addressing family and personal issues in advance of the event, when possible
19. Establishing the annual emergency responder’s rotation schedule
20. Ensuring adequate water, food, medication supplies for a minimum of three days
21. Determination of position-specific responders
22. Ensure consumer transportation issues are addressed.
23. Incorporate into staff job descriptions information about the expectations of the 

position in the event of a disaster.
24. Specify essential and non-essential staff and how the staffing pattern will be 

implemented; specify staff breaks, etc.
25.  Specify how staff will be trained in emergency response; and
26. Identify whether the facility is located on a flood plain.

L.      Ancillary Support
1. Disaster Preparedness and Response Committee: The Committee, chaired by the 

Director of Risk Management, functions to ensure compliance with state regulatory 
standards in regard to disaster preparedness and response.  The Committee also 
provides on-going planning and implementation of Harris Center disaster programs 
and provides training opportunities to Harris Center staff to prepare them for critical 
incident response.

2. Disaster Response Floor Wardens: When support and administrative services are 
located in multi-level facilities, Disaster Response Floor Wardens, identified to The 
Harris Center’s Incident Commander, shall coordinate Disaster and Response planning 
for support and administrative components.  

M. After Action Report
A debriefing will occur after each emergency or disaster event and will be documented 
in a report.  See Attachment B

Approver Signature   _______________________________Date_________________________

Page 170 of 533



9

Page 171 of 533



10

The Harris Center Important Numbers

For EMERGENCIES: 911

Environmental Health and Safety Officer 713-970-3012
Risk Management Director 713-970-3492
Infection Control 713-970-7372
Facilities Service 713-
Main Line 713-970-7000

Page 172 of 533



11

Attachment A
Pre-Disaster Checklist for Storm

96 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL

Initial Discussion/Meetings Regarding the Incident and Potential Action
 Fuel - Emergency Generators (non-natural gas)/ Vehicles
 Review Emergency and Continuity Plans and Procedures
 Monitor OEM calls
 Review and update Contact Lists (also update Ping Board)
 Review and Replenish if necessary the Emergency Supplies (Food/Water/etc.)
 Secure Facilities (Security personnel; weatherize buildings)
 Place Ride Out Team on Notice (If Applicable)
 Ensure IT Systems are Backed Up
 Human Resources Department initiate Disaster Timesheet policy
 

72 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL

 Monitor OEM calls
 Update Incident Command
 Ensure Supplies including water and food are in place
 Check Building/s for Readiness

 
Connect with strategic partners – County/ City OEM, Public Health, NBHA, Red Cross – 
Review Annex

 Notify IT for robocall to supply bridge medications to patients
Evacuation of Center Programs and IDD Residential if necessary
PIO to notify HHSC and local Emergency Operation Centers of center status

48 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL

 Move vehicles to second floor of 9401
 Dir. of Facilities place Internal/External Dependencies (Contractors, Etc.) on notice 
 Monitor OEM calls
 Update Incident Command

Begin Securing Facilities
Component decisions about coverage, alternate service sites.
Ensure access to necessary systems for personnel to work from home (if applicable).
PIO send media alerts

Page 173 of 533



12

24 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL

 Send Ride-Out Team Members Home – Make Family Arrangements & Gather Go Kits
 Monitor County OEM call
 Confirm facilities has been secured: windows, doors, pipes (if applicable) 
 Cover and Secure Vulnerable Equipment and Files with Plastic  
 Move Vulnerable Equipment, Subject to Flooding/Damage, to Secured Area

Move medications to secure area 
Update Incident Command Team
PIO send media alerts

12 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL

 Monitor weather, County notices
 Ride-Out Team make final preparations
  Ensure the Battery Powered Devices are Operational
 Update Incident Command team
 PIO send media alerts

 

4 HOURS BEFORE LANDFALL

Ride-Out Team arrives
 Facility and Security Services announce status checks

Update Incident Command team
PIO send media alerts

Page 174 of 533



13

Attachment B

EVENT
DATE(S)

After Action Report/Improvement Plan

Page 175 of 533



14

Emergency Overview

Event Name

Date(s) of Event

[Affected Area(s)] 

[Incident/Exercise]
Threat or Hazard

Page 176 of 533



15

INTRODUCTION
 [Include a brief synopsis of incident/exercise and sequence of events here]

Page 177 of 533



16

STRENGTHS
1) [Strength 1]
2) [Strength 2, etc]

Page 178 of 533



17

AREAS OF IMPROVEMENT
1) [Improvement 1]
2) [Improvement 2, etc]

Page 179 of 533



18

APPENDIX A – IMPROVEMENT MATRIX

Improvement Plan

# Area of Improvement/Category Corrective Action Responsible 
Party Status

Estimated 
Completion 

Date

1

2

3

# Area of Improvement/Category Corrective Action Responsible 
Party Status

Estimated 
Completion 

Date

4

5

6

Page 180 of 533



APPENDIX B – AFTER ACTION REPORT - PARTICIPATING DEPARTMENTS
[If other departments or buildings were involved during this incident and completing the AAR, list them 
here]

Page 181 of 533





1

Policy No.  Leadership 14. A Subject: Closed Record Committee 

Agency Policy Initial Approval Date:  4/13/2008

Sponsor: Chief Medical Officer New Board Approval Date:

1. PURPOSE
To provide clinical peer review of all deaths of the Harris Center’s patients to ensure that the clinical 
care was appropriate and conforms to the Harris Center’s patient care policies and procedures and 
the community standard of care.

2. POLICY
It is the policy of The Harris Center to ensure that the deaths of all consumers being served in The 
Harris Center programs, including all consumers served in The Harris Center contracted placements, 
are peer reviewed.  All contract providers will be responsible for adhering to the provisions of this 
policy and procedure.  The Harris Center's Closed Records Committee is responsible for the clinical 
peer review of all consumer deaths and making recommendations to the Chief Executive  Officer, 
or designee, for the improvement of the Harris Center's service delivery system. The Closed Records 
Committee is a subcommittee of the Professional Review Committee (PRC). 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center including, direct and contracted 
employees. 

4. PROCEDURES 
A. Notification Upon the Death of an Individual Served 
B. Administration Review 
C. Record and Findings
D. Clinical Death Review
E. Other Programs 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:
Incident Reporting INC:9
Consumer Closed Record Review COMM: 4.001

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS:
Deaths of Persons Served by TXMHMR Facilities or Community Mental Health & Mental 
Retardation Centers, Title 25 Tex. Admin. Code, Part 1, Chapter 405, Subchapter K

Approver Signature   ____________________________________ Date_____________________

Page 182 of 533





1

Policy No.   Subject: CRIMINAL HISTORY CLEARANCES

Agency Policy Initial Approval Date:  3/2000

Sponsor: Human Resources New Board Approval Date: 

1. PURPOSE
The purpose of this policy is The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) is to 
protect minimize the employer from potential risk of criminal activity, evaluate the accuracy of 
applicants, contractors or employees’ credentials, as well as, increase safety and wellness of Harris 
Center employees,  population, student interns, contractors, patients, visitors and guests.

2. POLICY
It is the policy of The Harris Center to protect individuals receiving services provided by The Harris 
Center and contract providers of such services and the property of those individuals.  In order to 
promote a safe environment, pursuant to law, The Harris Center conducts criminal history 
clearances of applicants for:  1) employment, 2) individual contractors who would provide direct 
care services, 3) student interns, and 4) volunteers.

The Harris Center will also conduct annual criminal history clearances on all existing employees, 
individual contractors, student interns, and volunteers. All background check information will be 
kept confidential. All information obtained as a result of a background check will be used solely for 
employment purposes

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
Applicants for employment, Aall The Harris Center employees, contractors providing direct care 
services, interns, volunteer applicants and volunteers.  and staff

4. PROCEDURES
 Employment Criminal History Clearance
 Criminal History Report
 Annual Criminal History Clearance
 Self-Reporting
 Falsification of Application

5. Related policies/Forms:
N/A

6. References: Rules/Regulations/Standards
 Access to Criminal History Information: Department of State Health Services & Human 

Services Commission; Local Authorities; Community Centers- Texas Government Code 
§411.115

Page 183 of 533



2

 Nurse Aide Registry & Criminal History Checks of Employees and Applicants for Employment 
in Certain Facilities Serving the Elderly, Persons with Disabilities or Persons with Terminal 
Illness- Texas Health & Safety Code, Chapter 250

 Use of Criminal History Record Information-Texas Health & Safety Code §533.007
 Criminal History & Registry Clearance-Title 25 Texas Administrative Code, Part 1, Subchapter 

K, Chapter 414

Approver Signature   ____________________________________ Date_____________________

Page 184 of 533



EXHIBIT F-11 



1

Policy No.   Subject: Employee Job Descriptions 

Agency Policy Initial Approval  Date: 4/1998

Sponsor: Human Resources Department New Board Approval Date:

1. PURPOSE
To ensure that the basic and essential duties and requirements of all Agency Harris Center roles 
job positions have aare detailed, prepared and maintain accurate, up-to-date job descriptions to 
successfully perform the job. for all positions in the agency.

2. POLICY
In accordance with The Harris Center for Mental Health and Intellectual and Developmental 
Disability (The Harris Center) Policies and Procedures, everyach employee shall receive, at the time 
of employment, reclassification and or promotion, the opportunity to review a written job 
description.  Also, job descriptions shall be reviewed and modified for current positions within a 
reasonable period of time following a material change in the essential duties of the position. Job 
descriptions should shall be updated annually, and if necessary, at the time the position becomes 
vacant as responsibilities may change.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
This policy applies to all staff employed by The Harris Center including, both direct and contracted 
employees.  

4. PROCEDURES
A. Annual Review
B. Job Description Format
C. Distribution of Copies

5. Related policies/Forms:
Employee Performance Evaluations PER:22

        Job Description Online Instructions Attachment A

6. References: Rules/Regulations/Standards
 The Harris Center’s Policy and Procedure Handbook

Approver Signature   ____________________________________ Date_____________________

Page 185 of 533



EXHIBIT F-12 



Policy No.   HIM: 003 Subject:  Confidentiality and Disclosure of Patient/Individual Health        
Information

 Agency Policy Initial Approval Date:  June 2000

Sponsor: Health Information Management New Board Approval Date:

1. PURPOSE
The Center shall protect the privacy of all patient/individual health information and safeguard such 
information against loss, damage, alteration, or impermissible disclosure.  Uses and disclosures will be made 
only as permitted or required by law and will consist of only the relevant or minimal amount necessary to 
satisfy the purpose of the use or disclosure.

2. POLICY
It is the policy of The Harris Center that the patient/individual records are the property of the Center and may 
be removed from Center premises only in accordance with a court order, subpoena, or statute.  Proven 
privacy violations of the patient/individual health information by any employee or business associate may be 
cause for disciplinary actions including termination of employment or contract.  Violations will also be 
mitigated in accordance with privacy regulations. and criminal activities shall be referred to appropriate 
authorities.  Also, Confidentiality breaches are subject to federal investigations and possible fines and 
imprisonment as set forth in the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Privacy Rule.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
This policy applies to all departments, divisions, facilities and/or programs within The Harris Center.

4. PROCEDURES
See procedure HIM: 003b.

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS
Policy and Procedures Reference
Patient/Individual Records Administration   HIM: 005
Faxing Patient/Individual Record Information HIM: 009
Patient/ Individual Access to Medical Records HIM: 016 
Sanctions for Privacy and Security Violations HIM: 017

Forms Reference
Authorization Request Cover Letter
Authorization to Disclose Patient/Individual Health Information HIM: 016
Revocation for Disclosure of Health Information HIM: 016
Media Consent Form HIM: 015

Procedure Attachments Reference
Patient/Individual Protected Health Information
Release of Information Log Attachment A
Release of Information Grid Attachment B

Page 186 of 533



Verification Checklist for Processing Authorizations Attachment C
Release of Information Cover Letter Attachment D
Confidentiality Statement Attachment E
Release of Information Processing Fee Attachment F
Release of Information Invoice  Attachment G
Subpoena Information Sheet Attachment H
Employee Statement of Information Security and Confidentiality Attachment I
Emergency Verification for Disclosure of Protected Health Information Attachment J
Confidentiality Awareness Guidelines Attachment K
Guidelines for Releases Attachment L
Business Records Affidavit
No Records Affidavit

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS
Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 1996, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164
Investigations and Protective Services for Elderly Persons and Persons with Disabilities, Texas Administrative 
Code:  Protected Health Information, Chapter 414, Subchapter A
Texas Human Resources Codes, Chapter 48
Medical Records Privacy Act, Texas Health & Safety Code Chapter 181
Mental Health Record, Texas Health and Safety Codes, Chapter 611
Interagency Sharing of Certain Noneducational Records, Texas Family Code, Chapter 32
Texas Family Code §5Sec 58.0052
Physician-Patient Communication, Texas Occupations Code, Chapter 159
Physician-Patient Privilege, Texas Rules of Civil Evidence , Rules 509
Mental Health Information Privilege in Civil Cases, Texas Rules of Evidence 510
Texas Rules of Criminal Evidence, Rule 510
Title 42 Code of Federal Regulation Part 2
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 1996, Part 160 and 164
The Privacy Act of 1974
Code of Federal Regulations 483.10(e)
Texas Health & Safety Code Chapter 181

Approver Signature   ____________________________________ Date_____________________

Page 187 of 533



EXHIBIT F-13 



1

Policy No.   Subject: LICENSURE, CERTIFICATION, AND REGISTRATION

Agency Policy Initial Approval Date: 2/2001

Sponsor: Compliance New Board Approval Date:

1. PURPOSE
The purpose of this policy is to ensure The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris 
Center) verifies the professional licensure, registration and certification of employees, volunteers 
and contractors who are in identified positions or job classifications that require an occupational 
license, certification or registration. 

2. POLICY
The Harris Center requires employees in identified positions and/or job classifications to hold and 
maintain in good standing applicable professional licenses, registrations, certifications, and 
educational credentials. Employees must provide The Harris Center proof of the existence and 
current status of such professional licenses, registration, certifications and educational records by 
submitting official copies that bear authenticity. Upon receipt of proof, it is the policy of The Harris 
Center to validate such licenses,  registrations and certifications electronically, as appropriate, when 
available. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
All The Harris Center employees, volunteers and contractors whose position requires a license, 
certification, and/or registration.

4. PROCEDURES
 Central Records-Human Resources Service Responsibilities
 Supervisory Responsibilities
 Employee Responsibilities
 Positions

5. Related Policies and Forms
N/A

6. Reference: Rules/Regulations/Standards
Competency and Credentialing, 36 Tex. Admin. Code §301.331

Approver Signature   ____________________________________ Date_____________________

Page 188 of 533



EXHIBIT F-14 



 

 
Policy No. Subject: Nursing Peer Review and Safe Harbor 

AGENCY POLICY  Initial Approval Date: 6/11/2019 

Sponsor:  Nursing/Medical  New Board Approval Date: 6/24/2020 
1. PURPOSE 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD (The Harris Center) is committed to ensuring 
high quality healthcare through the utilization of Safe Harbor and the Peer Review processes. 
 

2. POLICY 
The Nursing Peer Review Committee will shall evaluate nursing services, the qualifications of 
any RN, LVN or APRN (“nurse”), the quality of patient care rendered by a nurse, the merits 
of a complaint concerning a nurse or nursing care, and a determination or recommendation 
regarding a complaintreview and investigate the qualifications, actions or practice of any RN, 
LVN, or APRN functioning as an employee, consultant or agent of The Harris Center. 
 
The Nursing Peer Review Committee shall also also review any claims requests for of Safe 
Harbor Nursing Peer Review when a nurse makes a good faith request for peer review of an 
assignment or conduct the nurse is requested to perform and the nurse believes could result 
in a violation of the Nurse Practice Act or Board rules. , which may be initiated by a nurse 
prior to accepting an assignment or engaging in requested conduct that the nurse believes 
would place patients at risk of harm. 
 
The Harris Center's Nursing Peer Review Committee shall comply with state law and 
applicable Board rules related to incident-basednursing peer review andor safe harbor 
nursing peer review. 

 
3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 

The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
 

4. PROCEDURES 
Nursing Peer Review Procedure 
Safe Harbor Procedure 

 
5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS: 

Notice of Receipt of Report to Peer Review Committee 
Confidentiality Guidelines for Participants in Nursing Peer Review Process 
Detailed Summary of Peer Review Committee Findings 
Peer Review Committee's Final Report to Administration 
BON Safe Harbor Quick Request Form 
BON Comprehensive Written Request for Safe Harbor Nursing Peer Review 
Safe Harbor Request to Question the Medical Reasonableness of a Physician's Order 



 

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS: 
Nursing Practice Act, Texas Occupations Code Chapter 301 
Nursing Peer Review, Texas Occupations Code Chapter 303 
Licensure, Peer Assistance and Practice, Title 22 Texas Administrative Code, §§217.19, 
217.20 Texas Board of Nursing 

 
 
 
 
Approver Signature:  _________________________________ Date:______________________ 



EXHIBIT F-15 



 
 

 Policy No.  Subject: Telehealth & Telemedicine Services 

AGENCY  POLICY Initial Approval Date: NA 

Sponsor:  CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER New Board Approval Date:  

1. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to articulate The Harris Center’s intent to provide care without 
limitations to Harris County rResidents seeking treatment for mental health, IDD, substance use, 
physical health and related services; and, to ensure the implementation of standard policies and  
procedures and processes for treating clients consumers via electronic telecommunications. 
 

2. POLICY 
The Harris Center considers telehealth and telemedicine a cost-effective adjunct to in-person care. 
These are not distinct services. Telehealth and telemedicine are a wayservice delivery modalities 
that permit the agency Harris Center to delivers care to patients according to same standards of 
care that would apply to the provision of services in an in-person setting. The Harris Center must 
obtain patients informed consent prior to the providing telehealth and telemedicine services. that 
approximates in-person care without sacrificing standards or quality of care.  
 
The goal of telehealth and telemedicine is to supplement face-to-face care and allows The Harris 
Center to expand its treatment programs.  All clinicians involved with the assessmentin the delivery 
of care to of patients through telehealth and/or telemedicine will adhere to all laws all approved 
and related procedures. Telemedicine is provided under the clinical oversight of the Chief Medical 
Officer. 

 
3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 

This policy applies to all staff and contractors of The Harris Center. 
 
4. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference only): None 
 
5. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS: 

• Telehealth, Tex. Occupations Code §51.501
• Mental Health Telemedicine and Telehealth Services, Tex. Occupations Code Ch. 113
• Purchased Services-Advanced Telecommunication Services, Title 1 Tex. Admin. Code Ch. 354, 

Subchapter AC 
• Telemedicine, Title 22 Tex. Admin. Code Chapter 174, Subchapter A 
• Standards of Care-Telemedicine Services, Title 26 Tex. Admin. Code §301.359  

 

Page 190 of 533



  
Approver Signature   __________________________________ Date_____________________  

 

Page 191 of 533



EXHIBIT F-16 



1

Policy No.   Subject:  Patient Safety CommitteeNursing Peer Review

Agency Policy Initial Approval Date: NA

Sponsor:  Chief Medical OfficerDepartment of 
Nursing Services

New Board Approval Date: 06/04/2019

1.   PURPOSE:
The purpose of this policy is to develop and implement strategies which improve the promote 
best practices, improve quality and safety of patient care, and reduce risk to patients and  
improthrough an environment that encourages internal reporting and ongoing evaluation and 
analysis of processes and occurrences, patient and staff safety. The Patient Safety Committee 
was operationalized by the Professional Review Committee (PRC) and is a sub-committee of the 
PRC. PURPOSE: To evaluate nursing services, the qualifications of nurses, the quality of patient 
care rendered by nurses, the merits of complaints concerning nurses and nursing care, and 
determinations or recommendations regarding complaints including. 

It is not intended to be a form of punishment.

1.2. POLICY:
It is the policy of the Patient Safety Committee to continually enhance the quality and safety of 
patient care at The Harris Center through a systematic and collaborative approach that supports 
the ongoing evaluation of The Harris Center’s patient care processes and services. 

2.3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE: 
This policy applies to all staff and contractors of The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD 
nursiand the services provided.

3.4. PROCEDURES:
 Committee Composition  Committee Function
 Committee Process  Conflicts of Interest
 Confidentiality  Staff Supervisor Responsibilities
 Peer Review Referral

4.5. REGULATORY/REFERENCES: 
 Texas Medical Practices Act, Texas Occupations Code Chapters 151, 160
 Nursing Peer Review, Texas Occupations Code Chapter 303
 Incident-based Nursing Peer Review & Whistleblower Protections, Title 22 Tex. Admin. Code 

§217.19
 Rights and Protections of Persons Receiving Mental health Services, Title 25 Tex.  Admin. Code 

Chapter 414

5. process must be suspended, and the nurse reported to the board. The BON will determine in 
such cases whether or not the nurse is eligible to take part in a peer assistance program.

Page 192 of 533



2

6. The peer review committee may need to re-convene for the sole purpose of determining whether 
or not external factors contributed to the incident(s) that lead to peer review. Because the 
nurse’s practice is not being reviewed (only the surrounding factors), due process rights for the 
nurse do not apply.

7.6. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:
 Reporting Allegations of Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation CRT:2.7
 Confidentiality Guidelines for Participants in Patient Safety Committee Process
 Incident Review Form - Patient Safety Committee 
 Incident Referral Form – Patient Safety Committee

Approver Signature    Date 

Page 193 of 533



EXHIBIT F-17 



1

Policy No.   BUS-FB-29 Subject: Purchasing Card

 Agency Policy Initial Approval Date: 

Sponsor: Administration New Board Approval Date: 

1. PURPOSE
The purpose of the Purchasing Card (P-Card) Program is to provide the Harris Center with an efficient 
and controllable method of making small dollar commodity purchases not covered by a Harris 
Center Supply Contract. The Harris Center for Mental Health and IDD’s Purchasing Card (P-Card) 
Program facilitates the procurement of low dollar value items. The P-Card program eliminates most 
of the paperwork associated with Agency purchases. 

2. POLICY
Employees who are authorized to purchase goods and or services may request a P-Card; however, 
individual departments can impose more restrictive requirements and limits. P-Cards are assigned 
to individuals. The individual whose name appears on the card is ultimately responsible for charges 
to that card. P-Cards are to be used by the person to whom it is issued. Sharing Purchasing Cards is 
prohibited. 

Purchases made with the agency P-Card must only be for the use and benefit of the AgencyHarris 
Center. The card is to be used in place of petty cash, small dollar regular purchase orders, emergency 
purchase orders and whatever authorized Merchant Category Codes (MCC) are approved and setup 
for program/department use. Purchases on the card are for approved Center purposes only.  

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
This Policy applies to all staff approved to use the Payment Card (P-Card) Program Agency-wide.

4. PROCEDURES
A. BUS-RI:02 -  Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and / or Services
B. BUS-FB-29 - Purchasing Card (-Card) Program Procedures
C. BUS-FB-40 – The Requisitioning and Purchasing of Goods and / or Services Dollar Limit 

Threshold & Requirements

5. Related Forms / Customer Service Number
Attachment A - TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE
Attachment B - PURCHASING CARD AGREEMENT
Attachment C - ONLINE CUSTOMER SERVICES CONTACT & P-CARD ADMINISTRATOR CONTACT

         INFORMATION
Attachment D - PURCHASING CARD APPLICATION/INSTRUCTIONS

6. References: Rules/Regulations/Standards
State of Texas Commercial Charge Card Program Guidelines

Page 194 of 533



2

Use of Payment Cards by State Agencies, Texas Administrative Code - Title 34 Tex. Administrative 
Code, Part 1, Chapter 5, §5.57
The Harris Center approved Policy and Procedures

Approver Signature   _______________________________ Date___________________________

Page 195 of 533



EXHIBIT F-18 



1

Policy No. Subject:  Medical Peer Review Policy

AGENCY POLICY Initial Approval Date:   4/25/18

Sponsor:  Chief Medical Officer New Board Approval Date:
1. PURPOSE: 
      The purpose of this policy is to ensure a process whereby the quality of care provided by physicians 

and physician assistants at the Harris Center for Mental Health & IDD (The Harris center) is physician 
peer-driven and meets professionally recognized standards of health care via ongoing objective, 
non-judgmental, consistent and fair evaluation by the medical staff. 

2. POLICY:
It is the policy of The Harris Center to consistently assess physician-patient care activity, monitor 
and evaluate this activity to ensure the highest quality of care for all patients of The Harris Center. 
Triggers for physicians and physician assistants may include findings from routine patient record 
reviews, incident reports, patient or staff complaints, sentinel events or critical incident reviews. 
The deliberations of the medical peer review are held in accordance with all rules, statutes, and laws 
pertaining to peer review and any protections allowed under these regulations in regard to 
confidentiality and privileged nature of medical peer review deliberations and proceedings. The 
Medical Peer Review Committee is a subcommittee of the Professional Review Committee (PRC). 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
This policy applies to any employed and contracted licensed physicians and physician assistants.

4. PROCEDURES 
5. Medical Peer Review Procedure

6. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS (for reference only):
       Professional Responsibility Committee Policy

7. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS:
Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. §§11101, et seq.
Report & Confidentiality Requirements, Tex. Occupations Code, Subchapter A, §§160.001, et. seq.
Physician Assistant Licensing Act-Duty to Report; Medical Peer Review, Tex. Occupations Code 
§204.208

Approver Signature   ____________________________________ Date_____________________

Page 196 of 533



EXHIBIT F-19 



Policy No. PHAR:I Subject: Pharmacy and Unit Medication/Drug Inventory

Agency POLICY Initial Approval Date: July 2008

Sponsor: Pharmacy New Board Approval Date: 
1. PURPOSE:

To establish a uniform policy to control and account for all medications received, dispensed, and 
destroyed by the pharmacy.

2. POLICY
It is the policy of The Harris Center to account for stock supplies of prescription drugs and at a 
minimum, conduct inventory twice per year. The Harris Center pharmacies shall maintain records 
of all pharmacy transactions in accordance with legal requirements. In order to control and account 
for all medication, these records shall include documentation of the receipt and delivery of 
prescription drugs as well as those dispensed.

The Harris Center units may maintain stock supplies of medications for consumer use as deemed 
appropriate by The Pharmacy and Therapeutics Committee. Any medication stocked by a unit will 
be the responsibility of the Unit's Lead Psychiatrist.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
All Harris Center mental health and IDD service sites, clinics, treatment programs, residential care 
programs and pharmacies.

4. PROCEDURES
A. Clinic Pharmacies Inventory (AMH)
B. Clinic Nurses' Station Inventory (AMH) C. IDD Residential Units' Inventory

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:
Medication Storage, Preparation, and Administration Areas PHAR:3

6. REFERENCES/RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS: 
Controlled Substances Act, 21 U.S.C. §§827, 842, 958(d)
Tex. Controlled Substances Act, Tex. Health & Safety Code §481.067
Pharmacies-All Classes of Pharmacies-Inventory Requirements, 22 Tex. Admin. Code §291.14
The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook CARF Section 2E 

Approver Signature   ____________________________ Date_______________________________

Page 197 of 533



EXHIBIT F-20



Policy No. PHAR:3 Subject: Medication Storage, Preparation, and Administration Areas

Agency Policy Initial Approval Date: May 1993

Sponsor: Pharmacy New Board Approval Date: 

1. PURPOSE
To establish a uniform policy for the storage, security, preparation and administration areas for 
medications.

2. POLICY
It is the policy of The Harris Center for a Pharmacist, or other appropriately trained individuals under the 
supervision of the Director of Pharmacy (DOP), to ensure that all medications maintained by the Agency 
are stored safely, securely, and properly following manufacturer/supplier recommendations (e.g. proper 
sanitation, temperature, light, moisture, ventilation, and segregation conditions) and state laws and rules. 
The Pharmacy Department will conduct regular inspections of all drug storage areas within the Harris 
Center Pharmacies and each service site responsible for the containment of drugs.

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
All Harris Center mental health and IDD service sites, clinics, treatment programs, residential care 
programs and pharmacies.

4. PROCEDURES
A. Medication Storage
B. Access to Medication
C. Inspection of Medication Storage Areas
D. Medication Disposal
E. Medication Preparation and Administration Areas

5. RELATED POUCIES/FORMS:
Medical Services MED:IO
Medication/Drug Inventory
Nursing Unit Inspection Form

PHAR:1

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS: 
 Texas Pharmacy Act, Texas Occupations Code Chapter 551-, 552Texas Pharmacy Act 
 All Classes of Pharmacies, Title 225 Texx.as Administrative Code Chapter 291, Subchapter A-

AII Classes of Pharmacies
 Prescribing of Psychoactive Medication, Title 25 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 415, Subchapter A-

Prescribing of Psychoactive Medication 
 Health, Safety and Rights, Title 40 Texas Administrative Code Rule 2.313 Health, Safety and Rights 
 CARF Section 2E

Page 198 of 533



Approver Signature   ____________________________ Date_______________________________

Page 199 of 533



EXHIBIT F-21



1

Policy No.   PHAR:4 Subject: Pharmaceutical Representatives Policy

Agency Policy Initial Approval Date: 2/2016

Sponsor: Pharmacy New Board Approval Date: 

1. PURPOSE:
To provide guidelines for the activities of pharmaceutical representatives as they related to The 
Harris Center associated matters.

2. POLICY
It is the policy of The Harris Center to ensure positive, constructive, and objective relationship 
activities between The Harris Center (Center) and Pharmaceutical Company representatives. 
Pharmaceutical Representatives access to clinical sites and Harris Center personnel shall occur on a 
scheduled basis as approved by the Harris Center Chief Medical Director or Divisional Medical 
Director. These activities include, but are not limited to, the review of product information, 
sponsorship of medical education, coordination of studies for new and existing drugs and products, 
and responses to requests for procurement or recall of specific products. 

The Harris Center personnel are strictly prohibited from accepting any form of gifts, courtesies, 
meals, or remuneration in any amount from pharmaceutical company representatives. The Harris 
Center personnel are required to immediately report any form of employment with pharmaceutical 
companies, including payments for speaking fees, travel, or food, on behalf of pharmaceutical 
companies, to their immediate supervisor and complete the Outside Practice Questionnaire for 
Licensed or Non-Licensed Staff. 

3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE
All Harris Center employees, contractors, interns, volunteers and programs.

4. PROCEDURES 
Pharmaceutical Representative Access to Center Sites 

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:
Outside Practice for Employees of the Harris Center
Outside Practice for Non-licensed Personnel of the Harris Center

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS:
The Harris Center’s Policy and Procedure Handbook
CARF Section 2E

Approver Signature   ____________________________________ Date____________________

Page 200 of 533



EXHIBIT F-22



 
 

 Policy No.  Subject: Suicide/Homicide Prevention 

AGENCY  POLICY Initial Approval Date: 11/2002 

Sponsor:  CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER New Board Approval Date:  

1. PURPOSE 
To ensure that patients engaged in treatment in any of our programs or residential settings who 
voice thoughts of harm to self or others or engage in high risk behaviors are thoroughly assessed 
and dispositioned to the most appropriate and safe setting for further evaluation and treatment.
 

2. POLICY 
It is the policy of The Harris Center to protect the health, safety and well-being of patients and 
others by taking timely and prudent action to prevent, assess the risk of, intervene in and respond 
to patients' threats of harm to self or others or high risk behaviors.

 
3. APPLICABILITY/SCOPE 

This policy applies in all Harris Center mental health services including those providing rehabilitative 
services to consumers dually diagnosed with mental illness and intellectual and developmental 
disabilities, and in other programs serving individuals with intellectual and developmental 
disabilities. 

4. PROCEDURES
A. Suicide Awareness
B. Homicide/Violence Awareness
C. Crisis Assessment and Documentation
D. Training

5. RELATED POLICIES/FORMS:
Incident Report INC:9.001

6. REFERENCES: RULES/REGULATIONS/STANDARDS:
The Harris Center's Policy and Procedure Handbook

 
  
Approver Signature   __________________________________ Date_____________________  

 

Page 201 of 533



EXHIBIT F-23



Page 1 of 14

SECTION III: BYLAWS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE HARRIS 
CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND INTELLECTUAL 
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES 

(Approved MHMRA Board of Trustees: March 19, 1976)
(Approved Harris County Commissioners Court: April 12, 1976)
(Amended MHMRA Board of Trustees: March, 1993)
(Amended MHMRA Board of Trustees: November 17, 1998)
(Amended MHMRA Board of Trustees: February 23, 1999)
(Amended MHMRA Board of Trustees: October 24, 2000)
(Amended MHMRA Board of Trustees: May 28, 2002)
(Amended MHMRA Board of Trustees: July 22, 2002)
(Amended MHMRA Board of Trustees: September 22, 2009)
(Amended Harris Center Board of Trustees: September 26, 2017)
(Amended Harris Center Board of Trustees: July 24, 2019)
(Amended Harris Center Board of Trustees: September 24, 2019)
(Amended Harris Center Board of Trustees:  October 28, 2020)

1.00 Name

The name of the organization (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”) is BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES FOR THE HARRIS CENTER FOR MENTAL HEALTH AND 

INTELLECTUAL DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES (hereinafter the 

“Agency”).

2.00 Office

The Principal office of the Board shall be located at 9401 Southwest Freeway, 

Houston, Texas.  The location of such principal office may be changed from time to 

time by the Board.  

3.00 Activities

The Board shall govern the operation of the Agency as a community mental health 

and intellectual disability center that provides mental health and intellectual disability 

services to persons in Harris County, Texas, in accordance with chapter 534 of the 

Texas Health and Safety Code, rules and regulations promulgated by the Texas 

Department of Health Services thereunder, and applicable federal laws. In that 

connection, the Board shall also ensure that the Agency acts in partnership with the 

Page 202 of 533



Page 2 of 14

Harris County Commissioner’s Court, Harris Health, and other local agencies in 

Harris County, for the purpose of providing mental health and intellectual disability 

services to the people of Harris County, Texas, in the most productive and efficient 

manner possible. 

4.00 Trustees

The members of the Board shall consist of nine (9) trustees who are residents of and 

qualified voters in Harris County, Texas.  Such trustees shall be appointed by the 

Harris County Commissioners Court for terms of two years from the date of their 

appointment or until their successors are appointed. The Harris County 

Commissioners Court shall appoint trustees so that at least three vacancies on the 

Board should occur each year.  

The Harris County Commissioners Court shall appoint a local county sheriff to serve 

as an ex officio nonvoting member of the Board for the duration of the sheriff’s term 

in office.  An ex-officio nonvoting member shall have all rights and privileges of 

being board a member except voting.

A trustee may resign from the Board at any time, submitting his resignation in writing 

to the Commissioners Court with notification to the Chairman or Secretary of the 

Board.  If a vacancy shall occur on the Board by reason of death, resignation, or 

otherwise, the Board shall request the Harris County Commissioners Court to appoint 

a successor or successors for the unexpired term or terms.  A trustee may be re-

appointed to the Board by the Harris County Commissioners Court at the expiration 

of his/her term of office.

Page 203 of 533



Page 3 of 14

5.00 Meetings of the Board

5.01 Procedure

Robert’s Rules of Order shall govern the procedure at meetings unless notified 

by standing or special rules of the Board or by a majority vote of a quorum 

present at a particular meeting.

5.02 Quorum

A majority of the existing membership of the Board at any meeting shall 

constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and each member present 

at any meeting shall be entitled to one vote on any matter brought before said 

meeting and there shall be no absentee voting by any member of the Board 

under any conditions; provided, however, that a member may participate in 

and vote at a meeting by video conference call, if done in accordance with the 

Texas Open Meetings Act, Tex. Gov’t Code. Sec.551.127. The nonvoting ex-

officio board member shall not be included in the count for the purpose of 

establishing a quorum. 

5.03 Election of Officers

The Board shall annually elect officers at its regularly scheduled meeting each 

January, or as necessary to fill vacancies in officer positions.

5.03 Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held monthly in Harris County, Texas 

at a place and time designated by the Board.  Board meetings are open to the 

public and recorded to the extent required and in accordance with the Open 

Meetings Law.

5.05 Special Meetings

Page 204 of 533



Page 4 of 14

Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairperson, the Vice-

Chairperson (when performing the duties of the Chairperson), or by vote of 

the Board. 

5.06 Emergency Meetings and Subject Added to Agenda

Emergency meetings of the Board may be held, and an emergency item added 

to an already posted agenda, if done in accordance with the Texas Open 

Meetings Act, Tex. Gov’t Code. Sec. 551.045. 

5.07 Notice of Meetings

Written notice of the time, place, and agenda of each regular or special 

meeting must be posted in a place readily accessible to the general public at 

all times, no later than seventy-two (72) hours before the scheduled time of 

the meeting, as required under the Texas Open Meetings Act, Tex. Gov’t 

Code, chapter 551, subchapter C.

It shall be the duty of the Chairperson, the Secretary of the Board, or an 

approved designee to timely notify the members of the Board of all meetings 

and any supplemental subject being added to an agenda.

Pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Tex. Gov’t Code Sec. 551.045, 

notice of an emergency meeting or the supplemental notice of an emergency 

item added to an agenda shall be posted for at least two (2) hours before the 

meeting is convened.  Notice of an emergency meeting or an emergency item 

must clearly identify the emergency or urgent public necessity for call the 

meeting or for adding the item to the agenda of a previously scheduled 

meeting.

Page 205 of 533



Page 5 of 14

5.08 Order of Business

Generally, the order of business will be as follows:
1) Declaration of a quorum
2) Public Comments
3) Approval of Minutes
4) Chief Executive Officer’s report
5) Consent Agenda, including consideration and action on 

recommendations of Board Committees 
6) Items for separate Board consideration and action, as required 
7) Review and Comment 
8) Board Chair’s Report
9) Executive Session
10) Reconvene into Open Session 
11) Consider and Take Action on Executive Session items
12) Information
13) Adjournment

5.09 Public Comments

Every citizens shall be permitted two (2) minutes for public comments at each 

Board meeting.   Time for public comment may be extended by motion. 

Citizens wishing to appear before the Board during the comment section shall 

complete a form provided by the Agency for that purpose.

5.10 Board Committees

The Board shall convene committees as it deems appropriate.  The Board shall 

convene committees as it deems appropriate. The Board shall maintain as 

standing committees a Program, Resource, Quality, Governance, and Audit 

Committee.  

(a) The role of each of the committees shall be as follows:

1) Program Committee – oversees all Agency patient/consumer 

services and programs and related matters. 

2) Resource Committee – oversees all matters pertaining and/or 

related to financial resources, personnel, facilities, and capital 

assets of the Agency.

Page 206 of 533



Page 6 of 14

3) Quality Committee – oversees all Agency quality, effectiveness 

and outcome related matters. 

4) Governance Committee – reviews and recommends all Board 

policies and procedures, Board operations, Nominations for 

officers, and the Board development plan.

5) Audit Committee – adheres to the investment policy and oversees 

all Agency audit and compliance activities, both financial and 

programmatic, from internal or external sources.

(b) Resource, Program, Quality and Governance Committee 
Appointments

Membership on the Board Program, Resource, Quality and Governance 

Committees, including the Chair of each such committee, shall be by 

appointment of the Board Chair.  Each committee shall be composed of 

no less than three (3) Board members and no more than five (5).  Each 

member of the Board shall be assigned to one or more committees.  The 

Chair of the Board shall be an ex-officio member of each of these 

committees.  As a general rule, each committee shall meet at a regular 

time and day per month, although the exact day and time may be varied 

from time to time to accommodate Board member schedules and 

Agency business considerations.  Each committee member shall notify 

the committee chair, or his/her designee, at least 24 hours in advance if 

he/she is unable to attend a specific meeting due to schedule conflicts or 

other reason.

To ensure a quorum and facilitate the business of the Board committees:

1) The Board Chair shall appoint at least one Board member to serve as 

an alternate member of each committee on an on-going basis.  The 

Page 207 of 533



Page 7 of 14

alternate member will have voting status on the committee for which 

he/she has been appointed as an alternate in the event a quorum of 

the standing members is not available for a given meeting.  The 

alternates are encouraged to attend and participate in their 

committee’s discussion on a regular basis. The Board Chair shall 

also have the authority to appoint additional alternate members with 

voting status for any committee on an ad hoc basis, if the same is 

necessary to achieve a quorum at any given meeting. 

2) Alternatively, the Chairs of the Program, Resource, Quality and 

Governance Committees may designate Board members present at 

any given  Committee meeting as voting members of the 

Committee. Members of the Audit Committee may serve on the 

Audit Committee only in accordance with subsection (c).

 3)   In addition, the Board Chair shall serve as an ex-officio member of 

the Program, Resource, Quality, Governance and Audit Committees 

and shall be included for purposes of determining the existence of a 

quorum. The Board Chair may also vote on any matter before the 

committee for which a vote is taken. 

(c) Audit Committee Appointments

The Audit Committee may be comprised of up to seven (7) members, 

including a minimum of four (4) Board members, approved by the 

Board of Trustees at the next regular meeting of the Board following 

Board Officer elections. The Audit Committee may also include outside 

members, approved in the same manner.  The members of the Audit 

Page 208 of 533



Page 8 of 14

Committee shall meet the independence and experience requirements as 

established by the Board of Trustees with at least two members having 

basic knowledge about financial statements (i.e., “financial literacy”). 

The Officers of the Board will collaborate with the Chief Executive 

Officer in recommending Board members for Board consideration and 

approval.  Members shall be recommended based on:

1) Interest and willingness to serve

2) Expertise as it pertains to the Committee carrying out its charge

3) Diversity of the Committee

The chair of the Audit Committee shall be selected by the Board Chair 

from amongst those Board members on the committee.  The various 

members shall serve for two-year terms, staggered to assure continuity.  

An individual may serve additional terms on the Committee should the 

member and the Board so desire.  Additional members or replacement 

members to fill vacancies shall be recommended under the same policy 

and approved at the next regular Board meeting following their 

recommendation.

6.00 Powers and Duties of the Board

The Board shall have such powers and authority and perform such duties as shall be 

conferred upon it by state law, including Tex. Health & Safety Code, Chapter 534, as 

it may be amended, consistent with the creation of The Harris Center for Mental 

Health & IDD (formerly known as the Mental Health and Mental Retardation 

Authority of Harris County) by the Harris County Commissioners Court.

6.01 Attendance

Page 209 of 533



Page 9 of 14

If a Trustee intends to be absent from a Board Meeting, Board Committee Meeting or 

a Special Call Meeting, he/she shall provide notice of his/her absence by submitting 

written notice to the Secretary of the Board, the Chair of the Board or the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO) prior to the meeting being convened. 

6.02 Attendance Records

Attendance records of all members of the Board of Trustees for all regular Board 

meetings, Board Committee meetings and Special Call meetings shall be maintained 

in the office of the CEO.  Complete and cumulative attendance records of all 

members of the Board for all regular Board meetings, Board committee meetings and 

Special Call Meeting for each six month attendance period (January through June and 

July through December) shall be forwarded by the office of the CEO to the 

Commissioner’s Court within fifteen (15) days of the end of each attendance period. 

7.00 Officers of the Board

The officers of the Board shall consist of a Chair, one or more Vice Chairs, and a 

Secretary, who shall be elected annually by the Board and shall hold office until their 

successors have been elected and qualified.  In the event of the absence or disability 

of any officer of the Board, the Board may delegate such officer’s powers and duties, 

for the time being, to any other officer or member of the Board.

7.01 Duties of the Chair

The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board.  He/she shall be the chief 

executive of the Board and shall perform all duties commonly incident to 

his/her office and such other duties as the Board shall designate from time to 

time.

Page 210 of 533



Page 10 of 14

7.02 Duties of the Vice Chair

The Vice Chair shall be vested with all the powers and shall perform all of the 

duties of the Chair, in case of the absence or disability of the Chair and, in 

addition, shall have such powers and perform such duties as the Board may 

from time to time determine.

7.03 Duties of the Secretary

The Secretary shall ensure that accurate minutes are kept of all meetings of 

the Board, shall perform all of the duties commonly incident to his/her office, 

and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board 

shall designate from time to time.

8.00 Communicating with the Board

8.01 The Board shall have the right and duty to be fully informed on all matters 

which influence its obligations as trustees.  Nothing herein shall be construed 

to prevent the Board from informing itself as it deems proper.  The Board 

shall at all times be free to seek and receive information to ensure its policies 

and directives are effectuated.

Individual Board members may also seek and receive information from the 

Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and with the express prior consent of the 

CEO, seek and receive the information from specified staff members. In no 

event, however, may individual Board members direct staff in the 

performance of their duties. 

8.02 The channel of staff communication to and from the Board shall be through 

the CEO, accept that the Internal Auditor, Chief Financial Officer or Chief 

Compliance Officer may communicate directly with the Board as their 

Page 211 of 533



Page 11 of 14

fiduciary obligations may require. The Board and its committees may also 

communicate directly with staff at called meetings.

8.03 All proposals for consideration by the Board shall be presented by staff to the 

CEO in sufficient time for review and inclusion in the published agenda 

materials.  The CEO shall consider such proposals and make recommendation 

thereon in the agenda prepared for a Board committee or monthly Board 

meeting.  Except in the case of an emergency, proposals not received by the 

CEO within the time prescribed shall be automatically deferred until the next 

meeting of the Board. The final Board agenda must be approved by the CEO 

and the Chair. 

8.04 All Board members shall have Harris Center email accounts. Members of the 

Board shall use The Harris Center email accounts for all Board-related 

electronic communications. All electronic communications regarding public 

business shall be limited to emails only. 

9.00 Board Training Requirements:  The Responsibility of Governance

9.01 New Board Member Training

Before a member of a Board of Trustees commence service on the Board, the 

member shall attend at least one training session administered by The Harris 

Center’s professional staff to receive information as required by Ch. 534 of 

the Tex. Health & Safety Code relating to:

(a)  The enabling legislation that created the community center;

(b) The programs the community center operates;

(c) The results of the most recent formal audit of the community center;

(d) The requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act, Tex. Gov’t Code, Ch. 

551, and Texas Public Information Act, Tex. Gov’t Code, Ch. 552;

Page 212 of 533



Page 12 of 14

(e) The requirements of conflict of interest laws and other laws relating to 

public officials; and,

(f) Any ethics policies adopted by the community center. 

9.02 Annual Board Training

Each Board member shall participate in an annual training program 

administered by the professional staff of The Harris Center, including The 

Harris Center’s legal counsel which shall cover subjects as provided for in 

statute and regulation.

9.03 Training Development

The Board of Trustees shall establish an advisory committee to identify 

subjects for training. The advisory committee shall include representatives of 

advocates for persons with mental illness or an intellectual disability and 

representatives of the Board’s Governance Committee. 

10.00   Amendments

These Bylaws and these Policies may be amended at any meeting of the Board by 

two-thirds (2/3) vote of the trustees present, provided that notice of the proposed 

amendment or amendments shall have been given in the notice of such meeting.  

Notice of proposed amendments shall be given to the trustees at least seven (7) days 

prior to the meeting.

11.00 Statutory Requirements

The foregoing provisions of these Bylaws notwithstanding, neither the Board nor any 

committee shall be formed, convened, or appointed, exercise any power, authority, 

prerogative, or assume any duty or responsibility which is contrary to the Texas 

Health and Safety Code, Chapter 534, or any other provision of the laws and 

Constitution of the State of Texas.

Page 213 of 533



Page 13 of 14

12.00 Effective Administration of the Agency

12.01 The Board of Trustees, as a body, is responsible for governance of the Agency 

through the adoption and enforcement of Agency policy, and the performance 

of duties and obligations as required by law.  Individual Board members have 

no authority except when acting as part of the Board in a duly called meeting 

or as a Board officer, performing the specific duties of the position to which 

he or she has been elected.

12.02 The CEO is responsible for the day to day operation of the Agency, including 

the employment, training, evaluation, and supervision of all personnel 

necessary to administer the Agency’s programs and services.

13.00 Trustee

A Trustee may be censured by the Board and/or his or her removal recommended to 

the Harris County Commissioners Court for conduct which is contrary to the policies 

of the Agency or is against the best interests of the Agency.  Actions considered not 

to be in the best interest of the Agency include, but are not limited to the following:

 13.01 Failure to abide by the laws of the United States, the State of Texas, county 

and municipal authorities; and

13.02 Serious violations of the Agency’s bylaws, policies, or employee guidelines.

14.00 Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The Board of Trustees shall conduct an annual written performance evaluation of the CEO. 

The Board of Trustees shall consider the CEO job description, annual goals and objectives 

and any other relevant factors identified and approved by the Board.  The CEO performance 

evaluation period shall begin in September and conclude in November each year. The steps 

for the Chief Executive Officer performance appraisal process is as follows:

Page 214 of 533



Page 14 of 14

a. In September, the Board of Trustees reviews the Performance Appraisal Process by 

disseminating the appraisal tool to all Trustees and the self-evaluation tool to the 

Chief Executive Officer. 

b. In October, the Board of Trustees shall convene an Executive session to discuss the 

appraisal and review the CEO written self-evaluation.  

c. In November, the Board of Trustees shall convene an Executive session and finalize 

results and recommendations for the CEO performance appraisal.  The Board of 

Trustees shall meet with the CEO to discuss the results of the appraisal process and 

the resulting Board decisions and recommendations. 

Page 215 of 533



EXHIBIT F-24



Epic EHR Update

Mustafa Cochinwala, Chief Information Officer
David Chou, Chief Information Officer, Harris Health System

1

Page 216 of 533



Update 

2

Epic Go-Live: April 10, 2021

144,253
Number of visits/encounters 

completed in Epic

34,455
Prescriptions 

filled

320,000 
Charges 
dropped

4 million
Notes converted 
Anasazi to Epic

2,973
MyChart Active 

Patients

99.4% 
Barcode 

Medication 
Administration

Page 217 of 533



Challenges

3

• Reporting
• Delays in building reports - Issues with Epic Database(s) access due to 

Harris Health Security setup and licensing 
• Access and extractions issues resolved July 6th – Harris Health and our 

team working on building reports
• Training 
• We continue to get a lot of “How to” calls at the support line
• We have extended 4 trainers to assist

• User Account (Epic) Creation Delays
• We worked with Harris Health to streamline the turned around time for 

new account creation
• Optimization
• List of features, changes, updates and improvements to be completed

• Support 

Page 218 of 533



• End User Requests
o First point of contact: Super Users and/or Department managers
o Once super users are unable to resolve the issue locally, users will contact the Epic Affiliates 

Support team by dialing Harris Center Help Desk number.
o Harris Center Help Desk number routed to Epic Affiliates Support team 

• Long-term Support Model

EPIC SUPPORT AVAILABILITY
INCIDENT 

MANAGEMENT

Ø 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM: Harris Health Epic Affiliates 
Support Team will answer calls from end users.

Ø After hours and weekends: Calls routed to Harris 
Health IT Operations and Epic On-call support

Staff available 
24x7

Weekly Change Control Window:
Thursdays 1:00 PM – 5:00 PM or as needed based on emergency

Typically approved outage windows: 
Sundays, 11:00 PM to 5:00 AM, as scheduled.

Harris Health 
Epic Affiliates 
Support Team 
is staffed 24x7

Page 219 of 533



Harris Health Epic Support Organization 

5

Page 220 of 533



Thank You
For Your Support!

Page 221 of 533



EXHIBIT F-25



Page 222 of 533



Page 223 of 533



Page 224 of 533



Page 225 of 533



Page 226 of 533



Page 227 of 533



Page 228 of 533



Page 229 of 533



Page 230 of 533



Page 231 of 533



Page 232 of 533



Page 233 of 533



Page 234 of 533



Page 235 of 533



Page 236 of 533



Page 237 of 533



Page 238 of 533



Page 239 of 533



Page 240 of 533



Page 241 of 533



EXHIBIT F-26



Page 242 of 533



Page 243 of 533



Page 244 of 533



Page 245 of 533



Page 246 of 533



Page 247 of 533



Page 248 of 533



Page 249 of 533



Page 250 of 533



Page 251 of 533



Page 252 of 533



Page 253 of 533



Page 254 of 533



Page 255 of 533



Page 256 of 533



Page 257 of 533



Page 258 of 533



Page 259 of 533



Page 260 of 533



Page 261 of 533



Page 262 of 533



Page 263 of 533



Page 264 of 533



Page 265 of 533



Page 266 of 533



Page 267 of 533



Page 268 of 533



Page 269 of 533



Page 270 of 533



Page 271 of 533



Page 272 of 533



Page 273 of 533



Page 274 of 533



Page 275 of 533



Page 276 of 533



Page 277 of 533



Page 278 of 533



Page 279 of 533



Page 280 of 533



Page 281 of 533



Page 282 of 533



Page 283 of 533



Page 284 of 533



Page 285 of 533



Page 286 of 533



Page 287 of 533



Page 288 of 533



Page 289 of 533



Page 290 of 533



Page 291 of 533



Page 292 of 533



Page 293 of 533



Page 294 of 533



Page 295 of 533



Page 296 of 533



Page 297 of 533



Page 298 of 533



Page 299 of 533



Page 300 of 533



Page 301 of 533



Page 302 of 533



Page 303 of 533



Page 304 of 533



Page 305 of 533



Page 306 of 533



Page 307 of 533



Page 308 of 533



Page 309 of 533



Page 310 of 533



Page 311 of 533



Page 312 of 533



Page 313 of 533



Page 314 of 533



Page 315 of 533



Page 316 of 533



Page 317 of 533



Page 318 of 533



Page 319 of 533



Page 320 of 533



Page 321 of 533



Page 322 of 533



Page 323 of 533



Page 324 of 533



Page 325 of 533



Page 326 of 533



Page 327 of 533



Page 328 of 533



Page 329 of 533



Page 330 of 533



Page 331 of 533



Page 332 of 533



Page 333 of 533



Page 334 of 533



Page 335 of 533



Page 336 of 533



Page 337 of 533



Page 338 of 533



Page 339 of 533



Page 340 of 533



Page 341 of 533



Page 342 of 533



Page 343 of 533



Page 344 of 533



Page 345 of 533



Page 346 of 533



Page 347 of 533



Page 348 of 533



Page 349 of 533



Page 350 of 533



Page 351 of 533



Page 352 of 533



Page 353 of 533



Page 354 of 533



Page 355 of 533



Page 356 of 533



Page 357 of 533



Page 358 of 533



Page 359 of 533



Page 360 of 533



Page 361 of 533



Page 362 of 533



Page 363 of 533



Page 364 of 533



Page 365 of 533



Page 366 of 533



Page 367 of 533



Page 368 of 533



Page 369 of 533



Page 370 of 533



Page 371 of 533



Page 372 of 533



Page 373 of 533



Page 374 of 533



Page 375 of 533



Page 376 of 533



Page 377 of 533



Page 378 of 533



Page 379 of 533



Page 380 of 533



Page 381 of 533



Page 382 of 533



Page 383 of 533



Page 384 of 533



Page 385 of 533



Page 386 of 533



Page 387 of 533



Page 388 of 533



Page 389 of 533



Page 390 of 533



Page 391 of 533



Page 392 of 533



Page 393 of 533



Page 394 of 533



Page 395 of 533



Page 396 of 533



Page 397 of 533



Page 398 of 533



Page 399 of 533



Page 400 of 533



Page 401 of 533



Page 402 of 533



Page 403 of 533



Page 404 of 533



Page 405 of 533



Page 406 of 533



Page 407 of 533



Page 408 of 533



Page 409 of 533



Page 410 of 533



Page 411 of 533



Page 412 of 533



Page 413 of 533



Page 414 of 533



Page 415 of 533



Page 416 of 533



Page 417 of 533



Page 418 of 533



Page 419 of 533



Page 420 of 533



Page 421 of 533



Page 422 of 533



Page 423 of 533



Page 424 of 533



Page 425 of 533



Page 426 of 533



Page 427 of 533



Page 428 of 533



Page 429 of 533



Page 430 of 533



Page 431 of 533



Page 432 of 533



Page 433 of 533



Page 434 of 533



Page 435 of 533



Page 436 of 533



Page 437 of 533



Page 438 of 533



Page 439 of 533



Page 440 of 533



Page 441 of 533



Page 442 of 533



Page 443 of 533



Page 444 of 533



Page 445 of 533



Page 446 of 533



Page 447 of 533



Page 448 of 533



Page 449 of 533



Page 450 of 533



Page 451 of 533



Page 452 of 533



Page 453 of 533



Page 454 of 533



Page 455 of 533



Page 456 of 533



Page 457 of 533



EXHIBIT F-27



Page 458 of 533



Page 459 of 533



Page 460 of 533



Page 461 of 533



Page 462 of 533



Page 463 of 533



Page 464 of 533



Page 465 of 533



Page 466 of 533



Page 467 of 533



Page 468 of 533



Page 469 of 533



Page 470 of 533



Page 471 of 533



Page 472 of 533



Page 473 of 533



Page 474 of 533



Page 475 of 533



Page 476 of 533



Page 477 of 533



Page 478 of 533



EXHIBIT F-28



Page 479 of 533



Page 480 of 533



Page 481 of 533



Page 482 of 533



Page 483 of 533



Page 484 of 533



Page 485 of 533



Page 486 of 533



Page 487 of 533



Page 488 of 533



Page 489 of 533



Page 490 of 533



Page 491 of 533



Page 492 of 533



Page 493 of 533



Page 494 of 533



Page 495 of 533



Page 496 of 533



Page 497 of 533



Page 498 of 533



Page 499 of 533



Page 500 of 533



Page 501 of 533



Page 502 of 533



Page 503 of 533



Page 504 of 533



EXHIBIT F-29



Revenue Management
Metrics

Date: July 20, 2021 Presented By: Sean Kim, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

Page 505 of 533



• Payor Mix

• Revenue Cycle Performance Metrics

• Days in Accounts Receivable

• Claims and Collections

Overview

Page 506 of 533



Payor Mix

Medicaid 39%

GR/Selfpay 42%

Medicare 15%

Private 4%

Page 507 of 533



Revenue Cycle 
Performance Metrics 

Page 508 of 533



Days in Accounts Receivable

• Days in A/R is an industry standard for measuring the effectiveness of an organization’s collection efforts  
• Formula: Days in A/R = (3rd Party Payor A/R + Client A/R) ÷ Average Net Daily Revenue

FY 2019 Average = 46.1 Days

Da
ys

 in
 A

R

Industry Benchmark: 45 days

FY 2021 YTD Average Days in AR = 41.9 days which is favorable compared to the industry benchmark

FY 2020 Average = 44.7 Days

Sep 
18

Oct 
18

Nov 
18

Dec 
18

Jan 
19

Feb 
19

Mar 
19

Apr 
19

May 
19

Jun 
19

Jul 
19

Aug 
19

Sep 
19

Oct 
19

Nov 
19

Dec 
19

Jan 
20

Feb 
20

Mar 
20

Apr 
20

May 
20

Jun 
20

Jul 
20

Aug 
20

Sep 
20

Oct 
20

Nov 
20

Dec 
20

Jan 
21

Feb 
21

Mar 
21

Apr 
21

May 
21

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

47 46 45
50

46
42

46 45 46
49 47 45

49
45 43

47
42 41

46 46 47
42 44 43

39 41 43 43
47 46 45

31

42

FY 2021 YTD Average = 41.9 Days

* Transition to Epic EHR took place in April 2021 

*

Page 509 of 533



Claims and Collections

FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 Q1 & Q2 FY 2021
80%
82%
84%
86%
88%
90%
92%
94%
96%
98%

100%

93%
95% 95% 95% 96%

The Harris Center Collections Rate Trend 

Collections Detail by Payor for Q1 & Q2 FY2021 (6 Months)

Billed Charges Contractual 
Adjustments

Expected 
Revenue

Adjustments/ 
Write-offs

Adjustments/ 
Write-offs % Net Revenue Cash Collections   Denial Amount Denial % Cash Collection 

%
Medicare  $   1,668,097  ($  1,100,754)  $       567,343 ($      17,168) 3.0%  $       550,174  $      383,264  ($    26,662) 4.8% 69.7%
Medicaid  17,655,787  (6,883,578)  10,772,209 (101,450) 0.9%  10,670,759  10,695,630  (67,174) 0.6% 100.2%
MMP     298,413  (163,646) 134,767  (793) 0.6%  133,974 128,546  (3,706) 2.8% 95.9%
CHIP     264,766  (123,194)  141,572  (3,102) 2.2%  138,470  128,710  (783) 0.6% 93.0%
Private Insurance     1,444,478  (877,402)  567,076  21,505) 3.8%  545,571  166,452  (22,989) 4.2% 30.5%
TOTAL  $ 21,331,541  ($ 9,148,574)  $ 12,182,967  ($   144,019) 1.2%  $  12,038,948  $ 11,502,602  ($  121,314) 1.0% 95.5%

MGMA Benchmark for Net Collections Rate = 95%

Industry Benchmark: 95%

Average Monthly Count of Claims

Q3 FYTD 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019

28,867* 32,920 32,559
* April/May 2021 claim counts are lower than average due to Epic EHR conversion

Page 510 of 533



Thank You

Page 511 of 533



EXHIBIT F-30



Supplier Diversity Report

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021

Date: July 20, 2021 Presented By: Sean Kim, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

Page 512 of 533



• RFP Advertisement - Examples

• HUB Spend Report

Overview

Page 513 of 533



RFP Advertisements - Examples
Page 514 of 533



RFP Advertisements – Examples (Continued)
Page 515 of 533



Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 HUB Report (1 of 2)

* Did not renew HUB certification during FY2021

Vast majority of the Agency’s Historically Underutilized Business vendors are located in the Greater Houston area

Page 516 of 533



Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 HUB Report (2 of 2)

• Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 HUB spend = $2,645,264

• Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 discretionary spend = $12,463,493

• HUB spend % = 21.2% 

• Exclusion categories from discretionary spend
• Intergovernmental contracts
• Key service contracts with non-profits (Easterseals)
• University systems (BCM for residency program)
• Enterprise software (EHR, ERP)
• Leases
• Supported housing
• Pharmaceuticals 

• Utilities
• Physician services
• Trade organizations (National Council, Texas Council)
• Employee reimbursements
• Employee benefits
• Consumer-chosen individuals for respite services

Page 517 of 533



Thank You

Page 518 of 533



EXHIBIT F-31



Financials by Clinic + NPC
 

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 

Date: July 20, 2021 Presented By: Sean Kim, Chief Financial & Administrative Officer

Page 519 of 533



Northwest Community Service Center

2

• Service Description Adult Mental Health 
• Address 3737 Dacoma St
• FTEs 153
• Facility Size 40,000 sq ft 

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 Financial Performance 

+
-
+

Revenues
Expenses
Other Sources
Gross Margin

$  12,830,138
14,352,322
3,822,087

$    2,299,903=

Page 520 of 533



Northeast Community Service Center  

3

• Service Description Adult Mental Health 
• Address 7200 N Loop East Fwy
• FTEs 74
• Facility Size 18,000 sq ft 

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 Financial Performance 

+
-
+

Revenues
Expenses
Other Sources
Gross Margin

$  4,192,945
5,769,356
2,639,978

$     1,063,567=

Page 521 of 533



Southeast Community Service Center  

4

• Service Description AMH & CAS 
• Address 5901 Long Dr.
• FTEs 178
• Facility Size 45,000 sq ft 

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 Financial Performance 

+
-
+

Revenues
Expenses
Other Sources
Gross Margin

$ 14,460,816
15,015,401
3,848,304

$      3,293,720=

Page 522 of 533



Southwest Community Service Center  

5

• Service Description AMH & CAS 
• Address 9401 Southwest Fwy
• FTEs 175
• Facility Size 37,770 sq ft (clinic space)  

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 Financial Performance 

+
-
+

Revenues
Expenses
Other Sources
Gross Margin

$ 12,865,216
15,300,970
5,251,183

$      2,815,430=

Page 523 of 533



Neuro Psychiatric Center (NPC)  

6

• Service Description Psychiatric Emergency  
• Address 1502 Taub Loop
• FTEs 169
• Facility Size 37,308 sq ft  

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 Financial Performance 

+
-
+

Revenues
Expenses
Other Sources
Gross Margin

$ 13,915,296
15,047,637
3,238,252

$      2,105,911=

Page 524 of 533



7

           
  Northwest CSC Northeast CSC Southeast CSC Southwest CSC Neuro Psychiatric Center

           
Revenues          
Harris County and Local  $                 149,614   $                   37,459   $                 264,145   $                 246,371   $               4,473,660 
PAP / Samples                  2,907,719                   1,466,407                   3,101,418                   2,479,148                       379,924 
State General                  5,927,426                   1,969,046                   6,524,206                   6,678,324                    6,388,214 
State Grants                  1,830,812                                -                                  -                                  -                                  -   
Federal Grants                     476,838                                -                     1,959,867                   1,221,777                                -   
3rd Party Billings                  1,537,730                      720,034                   2,611,180                   2,239,597                    2,673,498 

Total Revenues                12,830,138                  4,192,945                14,460,816                12,865,216                 13,915,296 
 

         
Expenses          
Salaries and Fringe                  9,799,541                   3,273,110                   9,902,145                 11,088,182                  13,015,282 
Travel                       10,854                          1,391                          1,685                          4,265                         11,332 
Contracts and Consultant                         1,068                             764                          1,692                          1,417                       456,385 
Supplies and Drugs                  3,697,873                   1,869,132                   3,732,832                   2,954,714                       709,718 
Equipment                     404,853                      418,037                      620,454                      581,841                       237,339 
Building                     257,626                      142,664                      523,968                      451,453                       285,261 
Vehicle                         5,321                                -                            7,317                               12                           1,978 
Telephone and Utilities                       70,729                        27,692                        97,083                      114,299                         29,347 
Insurance, Legal, Audit                       21,758                          5,081                        17,355                        24,055                         44,450 
Other                       23,395                        11,483                        20,322                        19,569                       184,023 
Reserve for Bad Debt                       59,306                        20,000                        90,547                        61,163                         72,521 

Total Expenses                14,352,322                  5,769,356                15,015,401                15,300,970                 15,047,637 
 

         
Other Sources          
Fund Balance DSRIP                       34,254                        11,448                        31,365                        32,298                       727,524 
DSRIP Allocation Based on Metrics                  3,787,833                   2,628,530                   3,816,939                   5,218,885                    2,510,728 
Insurance Proceeds                               -                                  -                                  -                                  -    -

Total Other Sources                  3,822,087                  2,639,978                  3,848,304                  5,251,183                   3,238,252 
           

Gross Margin $   2,299,903 $      1,063,567 $     3,293,720 $   2,815,430      $   2,105,911

Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021 Detailed Financials 
Page 525 of 533



8

Let’s Transform 
Lives Together

Page 526 of 533



Thank You

Page 527 of 533



EXHIBIT F-32



COVID-19 PPE & Supplies 
Vendor List
Q1 + Q2 + Q3 FY2021

Date: July 20, 2021 Presented By: Sean Kim, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

Page 528 of 533



Report Parameters

• Scope of Purchases: COVID-19 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and supplies, including but not limited to
• Masks
• Gloves
• Sneeze guards
• Face shields

• Time Period: Sep 2020 – May 2021 (9 months)

• Purpose of Report: To provide an overview of the necessary PPE and supplies purchased in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic during Governor Abbott’s Disaster Declaration initially issued on March 13, 2020 and extended on 
September 7, 2020.  Governor Abbott’s Disaster Declaration suspended all contracting and procurement statutes 
and administrative rules to the extent strict compliance would impede a governmental entity’s response to cope 
with the COVID-19 pandemic.  On July 1, 2021 Governor Abbott extended the Disaster Declaration and continued 
the suspension of all contracting and procurement statutes and rules that would impede an emergency response 
necessary to cope with this declared disaster.  The Harris Center’s current contracted vendors have been unable to 
meet the Harris Center’s PPE needs.  Since the last reporting period, The Harris Center has contracted with two 
vendors (PPG Global & Muzzammil Sajjad d/b/a Innovative Solutions IT) to meet its PPE needs. 

• Thermometers
• Sanitizer
• Wipes  
• Spray bottles

Page 529 of 533



List of Vendors/Spend

1 Did not renew HUB certification during FY2021
2 Contracted vendor 

• 83% of spend on historically underutilized businesses (HUBs)

• 85% of spend on local vendors

**

Page 530 of 533



Next Steps

• Adhere to the procurement policy and procedure for goods and services via 
contracted vendors when supply is available 

• Good faith effort to engage local vendors and HUBs 

• Quarterly update for Board review until the end of the pandemic   

Page 531 of 533



Thank You

Page 532 of 533



EXHIBIT F-33



Meeting  Month: Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total 

Mtgs
% 

Attendance

Resource Committee Y N Y Y Y Y 5

Santos P P P P P 5 100%

Womack P P P P P 5 100%

Zakaria P P P P P 5 100%

Hunt (no longer Board member) A A 0 0%

Lykes N/A P P P P 4 100%

Badar N/A A A P A 1 25%

Gearing N/A P P P P 4 100%

Quality Committee Y N Y Y Y Y 5

Zakaria P P P P P 5 100%

Santos P P P P P 5 100%

Moore P P P P P 5 100%

Gearing P P P A P 4 80%

Lykes P P P P P 5 100%

Program Committee Y N Y Y Y Y 5

Moore P P P P P 5 100%

Lykes P P P A P 4 80%

Gearing P P P P P 5 100%

Hellums P P P P P 5 100%

Audit Committee Y N N Y N N 2

Santos P P 2 100%

Moore P P 2 100%

Womack A P 1 50%

Hellums P P 2 100%

Hunt (no longer Board member) A 0 0%

Gearing N/A P 1 100%

Lykes N/A A 0 0%

Governance Committee N N N N Y Y 2

Zakaria A P 1 50%

Womack P P 2 100%

Lykes P A 1 50%

Full Board Meeting Y Y Y Y Y Y 6

Santos P P P P P P 6 100%

Moore P P P P P P 6 100%

Womack P P P P P P 6 100%

Zakaria P P P P A P 5 83%

Hellums P P P P P P 6 100%

Hunt (no longer Board member) A A A 0 0%

Gearing P P P P P P 6 100%

Lykes P P P P P A 5 83%

Badar P A P A P P 4 67%

McIngvale N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0 0%

N/A = Not yet active member of Board or Committee

 The Harris Center Board of Trustee's Attendance Report

Calendar Year 2021

Page 533 of 533


